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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

YITESHES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it
is my pleasure to present you the Group’s audited annual results
for the year ended 30 September 2022 (the “Year” or “Fiscal Year
2021/22”).

BUSINESS REVIEW, IMPORTANT EVENTS
OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF FINANCIAL
YEAR AND PROSPECT

In Year 2022, the global investment market extended the
difficult time of prior years. The launch of vaccines cannot
completely stop the spread of COVID-19. Omicron variant has
appeared in China, which is one of the lowest spreading countries,
in the fiscal year 2021/22. The performance of most stocks
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) was affected accordingly. Hang Seng index dropped
from 24,575 points as at 30 September 2021 to 17,223 points as
at 30 September 2022, and further to the recent lowest of 14,687
points as at 31 October 2022.

In such pessimistic market atmosphere, the Group’s listed
securities performed unsatisfactorily. The performance of the
Group’s listed investments turnaround from profit of approximately
HK$53.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2021 to loss of
approximately 40.9 million in the Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

HITESWES

In connection with the Group’s unlisted investments, the Group
continued its focus on bonds investments, which brought constant
cash flows to the Group. The Group acquired/extended two
bonds in total. One of them was issued by AMCO United Holding
Limited, which is listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
with bond size of HK$30 million and coupons of 10.5%. Another
one was issued by SEEC Media Group Limited which is listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with bond size of HK$20
million and coupons of 6%. In addition, the Group disposed of the
bonds issued by Profit Big Enterprises Limited at a consideration
of HK$18 million during the Year. Gain on the disposal of
approximately HK$0.2 million was recorded.

The total carrying amounts of the bonds held by the Group
reported in the financial statements of this report decreased from
HK$186.5 million as at 30 September 2021 to HK$154.9 million as
at 30 September 2022. The decrease in the value of bonds held
by the Group is principally due to the prudent approach adopted
on the valuation of the Group’s bonds investment as mentioned in
“Financial Review” in this report. Aggregate bonds interest income
of approximately HK$20.6 million were recognised during the Year.

There is no major important event affecting the Group which
occurred since the end of the year ended 30 September 2022.

Looking forward, facing the emergence of Omicron variant,
which is more transmissible than the earlier variants, and the
tumultuous relationship between the United States and China, we
expect global investment will not be very optimistic in the coming
year. Accordingly, we will continue to adopt cautious measures to
manage the Group’s investment portfolio.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

YITESHES

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the Fiscal Year 2021/22. We would
also like to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our
shareholders and business partners for their continued support to
as well as their confidence in the Group.

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 December 2022
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kong Fanpeng (“Mr. Kong”), aged 54, has been an
Executive Director since 18 March 2010. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the
PRC. Mr. Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System
Limited and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He
also worked as the general manager of the PRC market and an
executive director respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong
Kong and Excalibur Securities Limited in (now known as “Delta
Wealth Securities Limited”) Hong Kong, specialising in risk averse
arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong capital market.
Mr. Kong was the chairman and an executive director of Shenzhen
Wansheng Investment Management Company Limited. He has a
wealth of experience in the Hong Kong securities market for over
25 years and is well versed in investment in the second board
market in both China and Hong Kong. Mr. Kong is the chief partner
of Shenzhen CAS Bright Stone Investment Management Limited.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan”), aged 58, has been
an Executive Director since 21 November 2012. He obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
Administration of The University of South Florida in the United
States of America in 1988. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in
dealing in securities, fund management, corporate management,
corporate finance and managing investment companies listed
under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Currently, Mr. Chan is
one of the representatives of Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited and a licensed person to carry out type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). Mr. Chan is currently an
executive director of several investment companies listed under
Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules, namely, China New Economy Fund
Limited (stock code: 80), Goldstone Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 901), China Investment Development Limited (stock
code: 204), China Investment and Finance Group Limited (stock
code: 1226) and China Innovation Investment Limited (stock code:
1217). Since February 2016, Mr. Chan has been appointed as an
executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited (“CTH”) which
was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange and was re-designated
as a non-executive director of CTH with effective from 1 December
2020. The listing of CTH’s shares has been cancelled with effect
from 23 August 2021. Since November 2018, Mr. Chan has been
appointed as an executive director of National Investments Fund
Limited (“NIFL”), which was listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The listing of NIFL's shares has been cancelled with
effect from 20 September 2022.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EERE

Apart from the above, Mr. Chan was executive director of an
investment company listed under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules,
namely Core Economy Investment Limited (stock code: 339) from
January 2021 to June 2021.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Ming Gin (“Mr. Lee”), aged 37, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 6 March
2013. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor Degree of Quantitative Finance
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is experienced
in securities, insurance advisory and fund management having
been working for several wealth and asset management firms.
Mr. Lee was a continuous education training tutor and is currently
a director of the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong,
and his professional qualifications include Certified Financial
Consultant, Certified Financial Planner and member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institution.

Ms. Lai Fun Yin, aged 38, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 27 June
2017. She has over 7 years solid sales and marketing experience
in travel industry.

Mr. Cheung Wai Kin (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 41, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 27 September 2017. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and he has over 15
years accounting and auditing experience. Mr. Cheung is currently
an independent non-executive director of C&N Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8430), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 September 2022 (the “Year”), the Group
reported a negative turnover of approximately HK$25.1 million
(Year ended 30 September 2021 (“Year 2021”): positive amount of
HK$76.7 million) and net loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$88.1 million (Year 2021: net profit
HK$62.7 million).

During the Fiscal Year 2021/22, the Group’s performance
of listed investments changed from gain of HK$53.4 million in
Year 2021 to loss of HK$40.9 million in the Year. The loss on
listed investments for the Year of approximately HK$40.9 million
represented net realised loss of approximately HK$19.9 million, net
unrealised loss of approximately HK$21.4 million, net of dividend
income of approximately HK$0.4 million. Set out below are further
information of these net realised and unrealised losses:

Bt 7% B B8

REBEE_ZE-_—FAA=1THILEE([KFE]) -
REBES A M & ¥ 5 4925,100,00008 T (BE_-F
ZT—FNA=+BELEFE(ZE=Z—FE]):IER
© F876,700,0008 70) A R AR AR ER B ABIEE
85 5 4988,100,0008 L (T = —FE HEFF5
62,700,000/ 7T ) °

R/ ZFUREE AEBLETERE
KEHR - - —FE M IE53,400,000%8 T 5K
F [Z /) E51840,900,000F T - R FE LM EBEYD
40,900,000 7T 5 £ &35 5185 88 4919,900,000/& 7T »
K 530 B 18 0% 58 4921,400,0005 7T - H1ER A% B U A 4
400,000 - EALFE SR R AZBEEBFENSE
ZERFEINOT :

NET REALISED LOSS CEBAEERR
Unrealised
loss/(gain)
Investment Disposal recognised in Net realised
Company name Stock code costs consideration prior years gain/(loss)
RBEEE
BRzASE EBESARES
NCIEY R 4345 5% REBR A HERE BB/ (k&) (B8)FE
HK$’ million HK$’ million HKS$’ million HK$’ million
BEET BEET BEET BEBT
China Properties Investment Holdings Limited 736 5.5 0.3 10.9 51/
THEXREERBRE AT
SunCorp Technologies Limited 1063 2.1 0.8 4.0 2.7
ENMRBR AR
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited 1282 14.9 24 6.5 (7.0)
EVeREEERAA
China Zenith Chemical Group Limited 362 15.8 9.9 - (5.9)
PR EIEBEER QA
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited 164 13.0 8.9 - (4.1)
HEE R EERERA A
Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited 1082 12.3 19.7 (9.8) (2.4)
EEHE (HR)REEEBRAA
Others (8.9)*
Hth
(19.9)

*

Net realised loss form others represents realised gain from others
of approximately HK$1.5 million net of realised loss from others of
approximately HK$10.4 million.

* HMWEBEBEFERCHBEME ZHEBIED
10,400,000 7T &Y E fth B 8 25 U 25 491,500,0007% T ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENRR DM

The shares of the companies mentioned under Net Realised
Loss above are listed on Main Board the Stock Exchange, and no
stock included in others contributed the realised gain over HK$1
million or loss over HK$2 million during the Year.

NET UNREALISED LOSS

The net unrealised loss for the Year of approximately HK$21.4
million represents the unrealised gain of approximately HK$50.2
million net of unrealised loss of approximately HK$71.6 million. Set
out below is the breakdown of the aforesaid unrealised gain and

FRERLET BRAFE HESAEMARZEE
B BAE % 31 U 5 1811,000,0005% 7T ok 5 187812,000,000
AL

AERBEEHE

AN [E R BT E1B)F 5 4921,400,00078 TIE R E
I % 950,200,000 7T 31 B 7~ & 35 /&5 8 4971,600,000
PETT e LRI BIE e A IR 2 RS a0 T

loss:
Company name Stock code Unrealised gain Unrealised loss
IR R A5 RERWE RERER
HK$’million HK$’million
BEATL BEAETL
WLS Holdings Limited 8021 28.5 -
EEEERER AT
SEEC Media Group Limited 205 71 -
B EEEE AR QA
Hao Wen Holdings Limited 8019 5.5 -
MR B R A A
AMCO United Holding Limited 630 - 11.3
ERERERAF]
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited 802 - 10.7
TREEESNEEBR QA
China Properties Investment Holdings Limited 736 - 8.3
PEEEREERARAQA
hmvod Limited 8103 - 7.0
hmvod 18 585 R 2~ 7]
Tai Kam Holdings Limited 8321 - 6.0
RRIERBRAF
Others N 28.3
HAth
50.2 71.6

All the shares of the companies mentioned under Net
Unrealised Loss above are listed on either Main Board or GEM of
the Stock Exchange, and no stock included in others contributed
the unrealised gain or loss over HK$5 million during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

In connection with the unlisted equity investments, the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of approximately HK$0.9 million and
net realised loss of approximately HK$4.1 million during the Year.
In Year 2021, unrealised gain of HK$2.0 million and no realised
gain or loss was recorded.

Owing to the overall increase in interest rate since the second
half of Year 2022, the global debt market during the Year did not
perform well and many enterprises are in financial difficulties.
Accordingly, the Group has adopted prudent approach on the
valuation of its bonds investment and outstanding receivables.
Expected credit loss on financial assets at amortised cost, net of
reversal of approximately HK$19.3 million and that on deposits and
other receivables, net of reversal of approximately HK$18.2 million
were recorded during the Year.

As a result of the unsatisfactory performance of listed and
unlisted financial assets investments, and the prudent approach on
the valuation of bonds investment and outstanding receivables as
mentioned above, the Group recorded net loss of approximately
HK$88.1 million for the Year, which turned around from the net
profit of approximately HK$62.7 million recorded in Year 2021.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 September 2022, the Group held assets of
approximately HK$511.7 million (2021: HK$554.3 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of HK$16.7 million (2021:
HK$11.9 million). The Group’s current ratio (as defined by current
assets/current liabilities) increased from 14.1 as at 30 September
2021 to 15.0 as at 30 September 2022, which was maintained at
a healthy level. The Board believes that the Group has sufficient
resources to satisfy its working capital requirement.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio (defined as total interest-bearing
liabilities/total equity) was 8.1% (2021: 4.5%), which was
considered by the Board at a low level.

Capital Structure

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the share capital
of the Company increased from 343,238,249 shares as at
30 September 2021 to 420,128,249 shares as at 30 September
2022, which was due to 68,640,000 shares and 8,250,000 shares
issued and allotted by placing of new shares and exercise of share
options, respectively.

HIELTREREMS  NEERAFEHRERE
I8 /&5 18 49900,0007%8 7T & B £ I3 &5 18 7% 55 494,100,000
BT RZZ—FE AEEHEBREFHR K=
2,000,000 70 - B AREFFE SRS EIE

AR ZZEZ—FTHEFURFNEERE A AFE
EHREMKRRARE BELERBAMBERZ Bt &K
SEHHEGEHFRE RANEERRBBRRNEENGEE
FE RAFERGRBEXNANEZ MG EETER
EEERE (KR EE) 419,300,000 T A K ike b E
fth FE W kI8 2 FEERE B & 18 (FNBR#E[E) 918,200,000

T e

HREMERIFLTUBEERERRTESE UK
HEMEHRRERAKDE ERZFERNEENHES
o NEER AR E E T E18F5H4788,100,0007 7T -
=2 = —F[Z B35 7 )F5£962,700,00055 7T

RBESRVKEER

RZEZZFNA=ZTHB FAEEBEEED
511,700,000 7T ( — & — — 4 : 554,300,000/ 7T )

BER$ MR4E S EY16,700,0008 7 (—ZF = —4F
11,900,000 7T) - AEE 2 RELLE (EE RN E
E/RBHABA_T_—FNAA=-ZTHZ14.18E
—TE-—HEHNA=ZTHZI15.0 H#EREBRKE-E
EEHEASEREARHERBENEEEEST Ko

EEESEBLR

BEBGBELXR (TRARMEBBERE TEnEsH)
B8A% (ZZE=—F:45%) EE=ZRAXLHBE
bR

BEXRERS

BHE-Z-_—FNA=Z1+HIEEE ARRHR
ABHZZTZ—F A=+ H2343,238,249% i% 17 1%
ME_ZT %N A=+ H 2420,128,2490% i% 15
I 75 B 7 i AR R B R AR R AT 5 BB AR AE o Bl B 1T I A B
68,640,0000% f% {3 %.8,250,0008% i {75 °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENRR DM

The Group is principally engaged in listed investments in Hong
Kong and in unlisted equity and debt securities.

The Board has been actively seeking fund raising opportunities
to strengthen the Company’s financial position. On 25 October
2021, the Company completed a placing and has successfully
raised approximately HK$17.2 million (before expenses), which are
detailed below.

On 4 October 2021 (after trading hours), the Company and
China Prospect Securities Limited (the “Equity Placing Agent”)
entered into a placing agreement (the “Equity Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Equity Placing Agent agreed to place, on a
best endeavour basis, to not less than six independent placees
for up to 68,640,000 new shares at a price (the “Placing Price”)
of HK$0.250 per placing share (the “Equity Placing”). These new
shares rank pari passu in all respect with the then existing Shares.
The Equity Placing was completed on 25 October 2021.

The Placing Price of HK$0.250 per placing share represents: (i)
a discount of approximately 5.66% to the closing price of HK$0.265
per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 4 October 2021,
being the date of the Equity Placing Agreement; and (ii) a discount
of approximately 10.71% to the average of the closing prices
of HK$0.280 per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the last five consecutive trading days immediately
prior to the date of the Equity Placing Agreement.

The Board considers that the Equity Placing represents a
good opportunity for the Company to raise additional funds and to
widen the Company’s shareholder base. The terms of the Equity
Placing Agreement (including the Placing Price and the placing
commission) were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and the Equity Placing Agent. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
the terms of the Equity Placing Agreement (including the Placing
Price and the placing commission) are on normal commercial
terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.
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The gross and net proceeds from the Equity Placing were
approximately HK$17.2 million and approximately HK$16.9 million,
respectively. The Company intended to use such net proceeds for
the general working capital of the Group and for future investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company. The
68,640,000 new shares were fully placed and the net placing
price was approximately HK$0.246 per placing share. As of
30 September 2022, the net proceeds from the Equity Placing of
approximately HK$16.9 million were fully used for working capital
and investments as intended.

In addition to the Equity Placing, the Company, on 7 September
2022, entered into another placing agreement (the “CB Placing
Agreement”) with China Prospect Securities Limited (the “CB
Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue and the CB Placing Agent has conditionally agreed
to procure, on a best effort basis, not less than six placees to
subscribe for the convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$21.0 million (the “CB Placing”). The CB
Placing was completed on 26 September 2022 and net proceeds
(“Net Proceeds from the CB Placing”) of approximately HK$20.5
million was raised.

The Net Proceeds from the CB Placing were intended to
be used for the general working capital of the Group and for
future investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. The aggregate gross proceeds from the CB Placing
was approximately HK$21.0 million and the aggregate net
proceeds from the CB Placing, after deduction of expenses, were
approximately HK$20.5 million, representing a net issue price of
approximately HK$0.244 per the new share of the Company as
if the conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds are
exercised.
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The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) of the convertible
bonds of HK$0.25 represent (i) a premium of approximately 19.0%
to the closing price of HK$0.21 per share (the “Share(s)”) of the
Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the CB
Placing Agreement; and (ii) a premium of approximately 16.1%
to the average closing price of HK$0.2154 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the last five trading days immediately
before the date of the CB Placing Agreement. The Conversion
Price were determined after arm’s length negotiations between
the Company and the CB Placing Agent after considering the
then market sentiment, and the market prices and performance
of the Shares, and the Group’s financial position. In case of full
conversion of the convertible bonds, 84,000,000 new Shares of
aggregate nominal value of HK$21,000,000 will be issued and
allotted.

None of the Net Proceeds from the CB Placing were utilised as
of 30 September 2022. The Net Proceeds of from the CB Placing
are expected to be fully utilised on or before 30 September 2023.

None of the convertible bonds were converted as of
30 September 2022.

The Group had margin payables and overdrafts totalling
approximately HK$22.0 million as at 30 September 2022 which
bear interest rates ranged from 8% to 16.0% (2021: 8% to 8.25%)
per annum. The margin payables and overdrafts are in Hong Kong
Dollars, and secured by listed investments of the Group, repayable
on demand and are guaranteed by the Company on behalf of
subsidiaries. In view of such immaterial amount of the margin
payables and overdrafts in Hong Kong Dollars as compared to
the Group’s listed stocks of approximately HK$242.2 million as
at 30 September 2022, the Company considers the currency
and interest rate risks exposure of its debt and obligation are
manageable.

Significant Investments

Investments with fair value/market value not less than 5% of
the Group’s total asset value are significant investments of the
Group, which are included in the Group’s bonds investments
and listed equity investments as detailed in notes 17 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of this report, respectively.
Set out below are further information of the Group’s significant
investments.
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Percentage
of fair value/
carrying value

Fair value/ of significant Realised Unrealised
Carrying value investments to gain/(loss) gain/(loss) Bond coupons
of significant the Company’s recognised recognised received
investments total assets during the  during the year during the
as at as at year ended ended year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
R-ZEB=-—
AB=+H BE-Z—-C HE-E—-_C
BERRER BEXREZ AB=+H AA=+H BE=ZZT=Z=
—g-C AfE/REE LEEERIAN LEERRAMN AAR=+HLE
AA=Z+BW HARTEELE BEBEKE RERWE FEERIHN
AfE/REE HWED (E8) (&B#8) BHEEE
HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBTT
Equity investment in 59.0 11.5% (0.1) 28.5 N/A
WLS Holdings Limited NiE B
RERZERERAFNRERE
Bonds investment in 45.5 8.9% - - 5.1
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited
ReMBEBERAANEFRE
Bonds investment in 33.9 6.6% - - 4.7
Hao Wen Holdings Limited
REXERERAFNEFRE
Bonds investment in 26.4 5.2% - - 828

AMCO United Holding Limited
RERERERAANESFRE

Equity Investment — WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS”)
(stock code: 8021)

The Group held approximately 649.0 million shares of WLS with
market value of approximately HK$59.0 million as at 30 September
2022.

WLS is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limit liability. WLS is principally engaged in the scaffolding and
fitting out services, management contracting services and other
services for construction and buildings work, money lending
business, securities brokerage and margin financing and securities
investment business. For the year ended 30 April 2022, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of WLS was approximately
HK$12.0 million, and the unaudited net loss attributable to owners
of WLS of approximately HK$21.2 million was recorded in the six
months ended 31 October 2022.

BRERE-ERZERERAT (EE]) (Bf
5% 1 8021)

RZE-_—HFHNA=Z1THB AEBHEAH
649,000,000/% E[Z£ % {5 + T 18 4959,000,000/% T °

ERAERNFASHSEMKINABRAR EREE
ENELEEREETEREMEEERBEER
% BEANRBEEMRE REXL SHLLK
FRBENRBFEEER REBEE-_T__F1TA
—THLEFE EEZEEABRGEEZEGAEEOAR
12,000,000 R BE_T_—_F +tA=+—H
IEAER SGEEREEABGEAREEZEEFED
21,200,000/% Tt °

Annual Report 2021/22 &3 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENRR DM

As WLS is one of the leading scaffolding sub-contractors in the
industry, the management of WLS are confident about securing
more contracts which based on the multi-pronged strategy adopted
by Hong Kong government to maintain a steady and sustainable
land supply with the aim to meet the continuing housing needs.
The Company believes the WLS’s business strategy is in line with
the overall direction of the Hong Kong government’s strategic
development plans for property construction, infrastructure
investment and financial market development, and considerable
amount of profit will be generated in medium to long terms.

Bonds Investment — Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited
(“Gold Medal”)

Gold Medal is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and principally engaged in money lending business.
It is a wholly owned subsidiary of WLS, the guarantor of the bonds,
which is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8021).
Based on WLS’ interim report for the six months ended 31 October
2022, its net asset value was approximately HK$480.0 million, and
its current assets and total liabilities as at 31 October 2022 were
approximately HK$540.6 million and HK$204.5 million respectively.
The current assets can fully cover its total liabilities. Accordingly,
the Company considers that there is no signal of default of bonds
issued by Gold Medal to the Group.

Bonds Investment—Hao Wen Holdings Limited (“Hao
Wen”) (stock code: 8019)

Hao Wen is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability. Hao Wen and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in money lending, manufacturing of biomass fuel product
and trading of electronic parts. It is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8019). Based on Hao Wen’s interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2022, its net asset
value was approximately RMB314.5 million, its current assets
were approximately RMB288.7 million and total liabilities were
approximately RMB88.6 million. In view of Hao Wen'’s strong liquid
assets and limited liabilities, the Company considers that Hao Wen
has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing operation,
there is no signal of default of bonds issued by Hao Wen to the
Group.
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Bonds Investment— AMCO United Holding Limited
(“AMCO”) (stock code: 630)

AMCO is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability and principally engaged in medical device businesses.
The company operates through five business segments, namely
Medical Devices Business, Plastic Molding Business, Building
Contract Works Business, Money Lending Businesses and
Securities Investment. The company operates businesses in the
regions of Asia, Europe and North and South Americas. It is listed
on main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 630). Based
on AMCO'’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2022,
its net asset value was approximately HK$93.9 million, its current
assets were approximately HK$151.9 million and total liabilities
were approximately HK$80.5 million. Included in current assets of
approximately HK$151.9 million were substantially assets liquid in
nature, which were cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$1.3 million, listed stocks investments of approximately HK$28.3
million, trade receivables of approximately HK$2.6 million and loan
receivables of approximately HK$114.4 million, totalling HK$146.6
million. These liquid assets can fully cover AMCO’s total liabilities
of approximately HK$80.5 million. Accordingly, the Company
considers that AMCO has sufficient working capital to meet the
ongoing business, there is no signal of default of bonds issued by
AMCO.
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Credit Risk Assessment on Bonds Investment and
Amounts Receivables from Disposal of Investments
During the Year, the Group has made expected credit loss
(“ECL”") on bonds investment of approximately HK$19.3 million and
that on amounts receivables from disposal of investments HK$18.2

million.

In relation to the bonds investment, it is the current practice
of the Board to review the financial situation of the bond-issuers
at least semi-annually. For any acquisition or disposal of bonds,
the Board would seek the advice of the Company’s investment
manager before making investment and divestment decisions. In
determining the amount of ECL provision, the Company engaged
an independent valuer to evaluate the ECL on the bonds held by
the Group.

In relation to the receivables from disposal of unlisted
investments, it is the current practice of the Board to review the
financial situation of the debtors at least semi-annually. For any
extension of the repayment, the Board would review the financial
situation of the debtors on a stand-alone basis, and request
interest on receivables as compensation. In determining the
amount of ECL provision, the Company engaged an independent
valuer to evaluate the ECL on these receivables.

Dividend Policy

It is the Board’s intention to distribute any excess balance by
way of dividend to the extent permitted by law, the Memorandum
and the Articles. Dividends will only be paid to the extent that they
are covered by net income received from underlying investments.
Distribution will be made annually after the annual accounts of the
Company are approved by the shareholders but interim distribution
may be made from time to time to shareholders as appear to the
Board to be justified by the position of the Company. Distributions
will be made in Hong Kong dollars.

As the Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio, the declaration of future dividends will be subject
to the decision by the Board and will depend on, among other
things, the earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants
of the Group’s bank loans (if applicable) and any other factors that
our Directors may consider relevant.
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Capital Commitment and Operating Lease Commitment
As at 30 September 2022, the Group had no material

commitment.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 September 2022, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises
from its investments in companies located in the PRC, which
are financed internally. In order to mitigate the potential impact
of currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where necessary.
No foreign currency hedge contract was entered into by the Group
during the Year. As at 30 September 2022, the Group had no
outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts (30 September 2021:
Nil).

Human Resources

As at 30 September 2022, the Group had 20 employees
including the Directors. Total staff costs excluding Directors’
remuneration amounted to approximately HK$6.2 million.
They perform clerical, research, business development and
administrative functions for the Group. The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and the staff
remuneration is determined on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employees.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the Year, the Company does not have any significant
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures.

Charge of Assets
As at 30 September 2022, the Group had pledged listed stocks
of approximately HK$97.7 million to secure the margin payables.
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The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
in its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate
governance practices, namely, mandatory CG Code provisions that
a listed company must comply with or explain its non-compliance,
and recommended best practices that listed companies are
encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case
of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the
mandatory CG Code provisions, save for the deviations discussed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors during the year ended
30 September 2022 (the “Year” or “Fiscal Year 2021/22"). The
Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities
are discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year is set
out in the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum
number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a
Board Member or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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Board
Meetings
Exg
Name of Director EEfS EE ]
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Kong Fanpeng AABEE 16/(16)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REZLE 16/(16)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYTES
Mr. Lee Ming Gin THERE 13/(13)
Ms. Lai Fun Yin REELT 13/(13)
Mr. Cheung Wai Kin REREE 13/(13)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines
on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 7 to 8 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and balances
to protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The
Board will review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue
to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are
disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the shareholders in
a general meeting or by the Board on recommendation of the
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into account criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering a new appointment.

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Investment
Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
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L EE EE EE REAE
N/A T EH N/A T iEH N/A i 4/(4) 0/(1)
N/A T EH N/A i N/A 748 A 4/(4) 11(1)
3/(3) 2/(2) 11(1) N/A i A 0/(1)
3/(3) 2/(2) 11(1) NIA T iE R 0/(1)
3/(3) 2/(2) 11(1) NA TE R 11(1)
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In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company. New
Directors appointed by the Board during the Year, if any, are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
annual general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, not less than one-third
of the Directors or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third are required to
retire from office.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Decisions of the Company are
made collectively by the executive Directors. The Board believes
that this arrangement enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s
objectives efficiently and effectively in response to the changing
environment. The Board also believes that the Company already
has a strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure
effective oversight of management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum
or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
Continuous Professional Development training.

Pursuant to CG Code C.1.4, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all
Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses or by
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Yuet Ching has been the Company Secretary of
the Company since July 2017. Ms. Chan is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She reports to the
Executive Directors and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Year, Ms. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update her skill and knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board
comprises all three independent non-executive Directors and is
currently chaired by Mr. Cheung Wai Kin, who possesses extensive
financial and accounting experience in commercial sectors. It is
responsible for appointment of external auditors, review of the
Group'’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. The results for the Year has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control matters
and to this end has unrestricted access to personnel, records and
external auditors and senior management.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CG
Code Provisions. In the Fiscal Year 2021/22, the Audit Committee
held three meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the final results
and accounts for the year ended 30 September 2022, and the
interim results and accounts for the six months ended 31 March
2022 and financial reporting system, and risk management and
internal control systems. It also reviewed the Company’s progress
in implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out
in the CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Lee Ming Gin. The
Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CG
Code Provisions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lee Ming Gin. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on selection of
individual nominated for directorships; making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive; and determining the policy for nomination of
directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated
in CG Code Provisions.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors
and measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on merit, and candidates will be measured against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee has the delegated
responsibilities to monitor the implementation and review the board
diversity policy and report to the Board.

24 EBEAIBRERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

YMEES

FHEEemaA =B FATEREAR B
ERNIRTEERSREEBZHFMNEN -FHE
BEEIRABUNNTESTALLELE -FHEES
NEmMATABEEE HERNEERETERELE
ST RIESCPRET AR ©

REEEE

REZESHEHMHA=-BUIRTESTEK =
FHFAELLERET - REZEGZBRERE B
EEgsRB ABCARRZT - MEAKBREE
RAZETEFEREZ AL IHERLZERALH
TEFIRUAESTERUER HNEFTZETHEH
RENRESR (LEREIERITRER) BEFEZE
MEERNESERLER R TRAEFZHE -
REZBEGUEEAITARESE REXNEERE
TERDE TR AE -

ESEnBE

EESCRMNEZTSZ LR UEBEEZRE
AELAFERREREFTEZ L BRETRR
R FiR - XEER HEER R ABERER
KB - BFEMBAZEHOURAES RRA-XEZ
BABBAEBGHRTOBREFERESTILZE
G RAZECREREIEEERERRTEZES
LKL MEEGHS



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee, which comprises all Executive
Directors, is responsible for formulating investment policies and
reviewing and determining the investment portfolio of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the CG Code provision A.2.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
systems of risk management and internal controls of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness, is committed to implementing
effective and sound systems to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the assets of the Group. These risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage risks rather
than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objective, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss; and to ensure the reliability of
financial information for both internal use and external publication
and to provide reasonable assurance against material statement or
loss and achievement of the Group’s objective.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the business
and operations, relevant internal control procedures have been set
up for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information used
for business and publication. These procedures are monitored and
reviewed from time to time and updated where necessary.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
+ ldentifies risks that may potentially affect the key processes
of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
* Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

» Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
* Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

* Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

* Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

* Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;

and

* Report the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.
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The management has carried out periodic review of the
procedures and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control (“RM and IC”) systems, including areas covered
accounting, business and legal compliance.

To further strengthen the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the Company has engaged independent
professional adviser (the “System Adviser”) to carry out the internal
audit functions and also perform independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC systems.
The System Adviser has conducted an annual review of and made
recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the Group’s RM
and IC systems (the “RM and IC Review”).

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the System Adviser, reviewed
the efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC Systems
in various aspects. The System Adviser executed the RM and IC
Review which involves the following tasks:

1. Conducting interviews with relevant management and staff
members relating to the risk management and internal
controls

2. Conducting walk-through relating to the RM and IC Review

3. Reviewing relevant documentation relating to the RM and
IC Review

4. Identifying significant deficiencies in the design of the risk
management and internal controls

5. Communicate the significant findings with the management
so as to confirm the factual accuracy of the findings.
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After the RM and IC Review, the management provided an
action plan so as to mitigate those identified deficiencies in a
timely manner. All internal control findings would be followed up
closely to ensure that the action plan is implemented accordingly.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Board was
satisfied that the Group’s RM and IC processes are adequate to
meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment
and that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s RM and IC systems are inadequate. Moreover,
the existing RM and IC systems are effective and adequate, and
will continue to be reviewed, added on or updated to provide for
changes in the operating environment.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 September 2022, the remuneration paid
and payable to D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED was HK$545,000 for
audit services (Year ended 30 September 2021: HK$495,000) and
HK$5,000 for non-audit services (Year ended 30 September 2021:
HK$5,000).

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 42 to 48.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the Year and they all
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
A. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board of Directors or the Secretary of the Company (Room 2302,
23/F, New World Tower |, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong)
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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B. Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Director

A notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company and a notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected together with his/her
particulars (such as qualifications and experience) and information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited shall be lodged at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business (Room 2302, 23/F, New World Tower |,
18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or at its share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited (Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong). The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting, and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 September 2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 49, 137 to 138 and 50
to 51, respectively. The Directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the Period.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movements in share capital and the reserves of the
Company during the Year are set out in notes 21 and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30 September
2022, calculated in accordance with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$300,285,045 (30 September 2021:
HK$367,910,507).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman lIslands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Executive Directors’ Statement” on pages 4 to 6.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to notes 4 and 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Environmental Protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper recycling
and setting auto power saving mode on the Company’s computers
in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to anti-
corruption practices for all employees. The Group regards honesty,
integrity and fair play as its core values that must be upheld by
all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the Board has
instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to solicit or
accept any advantage for themselves or others, from any person,
company or organisations having business dealings with the
Group.

Company'’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities
to advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
course fee subsidies and leave grants. Competitive remuneration
is also offered to employees and their performance is reviewed on
an annual basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the
Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to
conform with the Period’s presentation, is set out on page 140.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the annual
general meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the “Option
Scheme”), unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject to
resolution passed at general meeting of the Company the Option
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from 10 December 2013.
As at 30 September 2022, the remaining life of the Option Scheme
was approximately 1 year and 3 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Option Scheme
include any employee (full-time or part-time), director, consultant
or advisor of any member of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of any member of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service
provider of any member of the Group, or any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of the above
classes.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be,
the independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Participant under the Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of the Company
subject to options granted during such period under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue for any time being.
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Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive or
substantive shareholders (as such terms as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the
prior approval of the independent non-executive directors or
shareholders of the Company as the case may be. Without prior
separate approval from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant shall
not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of such grant; and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, in excess of HK$5 million.

Under the Option Scheme, the options granted may be
accepted by the participants concerned for a period of twenty-
one days from the date of such offer. An option shall be regarded
as having been accepted when the Company receives from the
Participant the duplicate of the offer letter duly signed by the
Participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 as consideration for the grant of option. Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at
any time not exceeding a period of ten years from the date on
which the share option is granted. The subscription price for the
shares on the exercise of an option under the Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
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On 16 February 2022 (after trading hours), the Company
offered to grant an aggregate of 25,200,000 share options (the
“Share Options”) to certain employees of the Company (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance of the Grantees, under the
Scheme. The Share Options will enable the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 25,200,000 new shares, representing
approximately 6.0% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of grant. The validity period of the Share Options
was three years from the date of grant and the exercise price of
the Share Options is HK$0.275 per share. The closing price of
the Company’s shares immediately before the date of the grant
of the aforesaid 25,200,000 share options (i.e. 15 February 2022)
was HK$0.27. The fair value of the Share Options granted was
approximately HK$3.0 million. On 9 March 2022 (after trading
hours), the Company offered to grant an aggregate of 8,400,000
share options (the “Director Share Options”) to certain directors
of the Company (the “Director-Grantees”), subject to acceptance
of the Director-Grantees, under the Scheme. The Director Share
Options will enable the Director-Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 8,400,000 new shares, representing approximately
2.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of grant. The validity period of the Share Options was three years
from the date of grant and the exercise price of the Share Options
is HK$0.251 per share. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date of the grant of the aforesaid 8,400,000
share options (i.e. 8 March 2022) was HK$0.25. The fair value
of the Share Options granted was approximately HK$1.1 million.
Since then, the Group has not granted any new options under the
Share Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The scheme
mandate limit was refreshed at the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 31 March 2022. No share option was granted
since 31 March 2022, and therefore, 42,012,824 share options
remained ungranted which represent approximately 10.0% of the
issued share capital of the Company up to the date of this report.
8,250,000 of the share options of the Company was exercised for
the year ended 30 September 2022.
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Details of the options granted to the Grantees under the BEZTERTERAZEREFBIREAEE
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the Year were as NEBRBEEHOT
follows:
Number of Number of
Number of Number of Number of options options held
options held options options cancelled/ as at
Exercise asat  granted during exercised during lapsed during 30 September
Category Date of Grant Price Option Period 1 October 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2022
R-B=-% =f
+A-H AEEREH AFEERTE AFEREH/ RAZTEME
£5 REBH THRE BRELAR FisBREHR ZEREHE ZEBRESRE X¥MzBREHA BREHE
Directors
Bz
Mr. Kong Fanpeng 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from
date of grant 2,750,000* - (2,750,000) - -
HLABE R “E-ZF-ATZH 02581 BERHEBEMF
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from
date of grant 3,430,000 - - - 3,430,000
—TZ-FZA+RAH 0.25% T ERLBYR=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from
date of grant - 4,200,000 - - 4,200,000
b 2 = 0.2518 7T BRI ASE=F
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from
date of grant 2,750,000* - (2,750,000) - -
REZELE —Z-ZF-A+=R 0258 BERHBHEMF
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from
date of grant 3,430,000 - - - 3,430,000
“BE--5-RA+TRE 02581 BRI BHE=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from
date of grant - 4,200,000 - - 4,200,000
—Z--F=ANB 0.2518 7T BERLBHE=F
Employees 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from
date of grant 2,750,000* - (2,750,000) - -
=] ZZ-TF-RATZH 02581 BRHBHEMF
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from
date of grant 20,580,000 - - - 20,580,000
ZZZ-EZRTRE 02581 BERHBEHE=F
16 February 2022 HK$0.275 Three years from
date of grant - 25,200,000 - - 25,200,000
ZZZZEZRTRE 021581 BERHBEHE=F
Total
@zt 35,690,000 33,600,000 (8,250,000)* - 61,040,000

The number and exercise prices of share options granted on

13 February 2020 were adjusted retrospectively to reflect the

share consolidation effective on 14 July 2020. Please refer to the

Company’s circular dated 23 June 2020 for further details.

# The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares,

immediately before the dates on which the 8,250,000 share options

were exercised during the Year, was HK$0.28.
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The fair value of the Share Options and Director — Share
Options granted of HK$3.0 million and HK$1.1 million, which were
calculated by Binomial Option Pricing Model with the following

assumptions:

Director —

Share Share

Options Options

Share price at the grant date: HK$0.265 HK$0.250
Nature of the Share Options: Call Call
Risk-free rate: 1.215% 1.300%
Expected life of the options: 3 years 3 years
Expected dividend yield: 0% 0%
Expected volatility: 90.884% 90.459%

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of
the Company’s share prices. Expected dividends were based on
historical dividends. Change in subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Save as mentioned above, no share option was granted by
the Company during the Year, and there was no share option
outstanding as at 1 October 2021 and 30 September 2022.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kong Fanpeng
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ming Gin

Ms. Lai Fun Yin

Mr. Cheung Wai Kin

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Kong Fanpeng
and Ms. Lai Fun Yin shall retire in accordance with Article 85(1).
Both of them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 September 2022, none of the Directors have entered
into any service agreement with any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Neither transaction, arrangement nor contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, existed at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates had any interest in a business which causes
or may cause a significant competition with the business of the
Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person
has or may have with the Group.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy
are reviewed annually by the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER THE RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Since November 2018, Mr. Chan Cheong Yee has been
appointed as an executive director of National Investments Fund
Limited (“NIFL”), which was listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The listing of NIFL's shares has been cancelled with
effect from 20 September 2022.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they receive
appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid

individuals of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2022
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in “SHARE OPTIONS” in the Report of
Directors and 2,750,000 shares of the Company held by Mr. Kong
Fanpeng, as at 30 September 2022, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
Discloseable Interests or Short Position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
“Discloseable Interests or Short Positions”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 September 2022, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director, the chief executive or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

On 30 November 2020, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement to appoint Evergrande
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (“ESL”) as its investment manager
for an initial terms of three years commencing from 8 December
2020. The Company has to pay ESL monthly investment
management fee of HK$50,000.

Save as disclosed above, no other material contract (not being
contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) was
entered into by any member of the Group during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the Year.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the Year and were not aware
any transaction requiring disclosure of connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED retires and, being eligible,
offers itself for reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of D
& PARTNERS CPA LIMITED as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 December 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB RS

D & PARTNERS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 49 to 139, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 30 September 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

AREXER

AREZFTHEEREAMNEXHE  RASHAH
REMBREANELRAEENETR - EULETREAR
HMEZERGAVBBRREMLEAERKETR
BH-RMreHELETREHREBNER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HREREHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMHNERNFTEERAESEE

Expected credit losses assessment and impairment of other receivables and investments in financial assets at amortised cost
(Refer to Notes 15, 17 and 29(a) in the consolidated financial statements)

HEWRABRIABIEAAA B BFEEERE R EEERERTERAE (DG EM BRI Z15 - 17%29(a))

The Group have amounts receivable on disposal of
investments with an amount of HK$67,395,896 (2021:
HK$71,369,086) and investments in financial assets
at amortised cost with an amount of HK$165,763,667
(2021: HK$197,640,436) as at 30 September 2022. The
unsettled balance is considered significant in amount and
the recoverability of the outstanding balance is subject to
impairment assessment by the Expected Credit Losses
(“ECL”) Model under HKFRS 9.
EEER-_ZE__FAA=ZTHZHERERKZRER
67,395,896/ 70 (= Z = — 4 : 71,369,086/% 7t ) K& LA £ 84 K
RNABEZHBEEERK H165,763,667F L (—Z T = —4F:
197,640,436/ 8 7L) - RIBEAHBEE RS EERNARBEL
R AT EMER FIRBEEEMBREERFORIATHIELRAE
EEFER ([THHEEEE]) RXETHRMERTETE -

The fair value was assessed by the management with
reference to valuations performed by an independent
valuer engaged by the Group and other information of the
investment.

BRAAARENHEREL2E ESEZRZBIUGEME
T2 ERRZIRE 2 B ER T -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

BMEHERENRENGEMETHREFBHE:

. Obtaining an understanding of the key controls and
processes that management has in place to assess
the expected recovery of these receivables and
investments in financial assets at amortised cost;

. THREEERTEZZTRREBRABEKXRFTEZ
MHEERENTERKRBMERN EZEEEREF

. Assessing the Group’s policies and procedures for
measuring expected credit losses;
. it BREHEENEEEENBERER

. Inquiring the management for the status of these
receivable and corroborated explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding the credit profile of the debtor, checked
historical and subsequent settlement records;

. 7 & 22 fE 3R 8 % 5 e M SR T B9 AR R - I DA 32 % 1 R IR
TEEEBEENRE flnTREFANGSAMRRL B

BEREEERRE

. Evaluating the independence, objectivity, competence
and capabilities of the valuer;

C bR ERM B FEME RS ERE

v Questioning the valuer for the basis and major
assumptions for the estimation of expected credit
losses of these receivables and investments in
financial assets at amortised cost;

. AR (B AT BERT A 52 5 e WGk TH R AR SH AR AR 5T 2 2
B EERENBHEEBFENEEREZRRK:
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BB RS

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRERER

Estimation of expected credit losses involves significant
judgement as it must reflect information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future conditions. Given
the significance of the other receivables and significant
judgement and estimations involved in the impairment
assessment, we identified the estimation of loss allowance
for other receivables and investments in financial assets at
amortised cost as a key audit matter.
HREHREEBELARBEBBEEMN SRR RARKMNK
RIEREER M TEREEERIRERAE -ERXNEf
JE W R IE 8 B A A BORUE R AR 8 R R M BT R kA BAMIE S
hEt b BURIE MR B AT B2 MR EERENEE
BESFAAREREE-

A4 EEHABAERADT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

AREXZEIR (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMWERNTEEEREE

. Assessing the provision on impairment loss of these
receivables based on Expected Credit Loss Model
under HKFRS 9 which requires ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with financial assets;

C REFEEMBREENFOREATHENEEFEEN

AEZERKRIENREBEREG AELHEFE
EHMBEENGEERR
. Obtaining, if any, agreed repayment schedules and

checking if the purchasers had made their settlement
according to the agreed schedules;

. %%Wwﬂ%iﬁﬁkﬁilﬁﬁﬁﬁ% S ERE
ERERENRS

. Performing background checking for the purchasers
including its financial position and assets proof for its
ability for repayments if available; and

. %Eﬁﬁﬁ%% %ﬁ%ﬂ#ﬂ&?wﬁ 2
REENMEEE (w%)
. Working with our valuation specialists to assist and

review the appropriateness of the valuation approach,
methodology and basis of calculation prepared by the
management’s valuer.

. HEEERSEHILEREEE 2 (HER TR
EEANX FEREEENEE -

We have also assessed the adequacy of the relevant notes
disclosure. The related disclosures on the expected credit
losses for these receivables are included in Note 29(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

HAAIIRE BRI TR R R R - B % 5 e U R IE 78 5
EE B R E SRR E W ERER M E29(a) ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Hih &R

ERAREFAYHEMERBE -AMERBEHR
FRAZER BTEEFEMBERERRMOZH
Bk & o

BPEGEEMBERR2BERLTRELMER &
M AEZEFEMERBREAT A ZEBEW

BARMYEEABRRZBZ RANEERH
EHMER THELBRET EEEMENEDS EK
Aﬁ?ﬁ‘&i&%ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ&%ﬁiﬂﬁqﬂﬁﬁTﬁ’iE’\J’l NEFEE
REFREUFFEEABERBRLAE

ERBPMETHIE HEMARASEMLERFE
BEAHERRL BHAFTEREZFE UM E - R
I B AEA 3R E -

EENAEERGEMBRRAREZEE
ERAEER RMBEESAMAGHRMZE

;‘%Eﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂuﬁﬁ/ﬁ (N TMWW ZHEENR &

HEAEBRAFNHGAVBBRR Y EREZTA/LE

ZAEES AERBREEMBERRLBEFEER
h R BRI (T 2 A B GF R AR B ) °
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those changed with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A6 EEHAIKRARAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

EERAEENGEYBBRRAREZEM (80
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

RBARELGEWBBRAREZEE (80

RIBF BB EAETEZE  RIAER TR -
PTREEFZBETREERIEEREE - KM

9 57 (45 2 B 76 4025 o 1A B S B8R T 28
By EAERRLAR BEZSARRHR
WTBEER EEXRREEEREEAR
M B RIBEER - AR RF S RAHERE
3 HORER SR M BN SR TR YRR
R e o B B8 TR LA 7 B KO SRR LI B
REBRBNER AR EAREREAR
-

THREEZABZAMES URFREZE
RREF-BYFEEYH EEERNINEHZE

AEAERRREERE UREEMIEE
AR AERERT AR -

REBERAUNFEREREM I AR
HE URBCERZERER BREERA
i EEEREEEZRNAURBRERRER
CEHHIBRAEFEATHERNR - HERFRE
RRFEEATHERR RMAARKMOZ
B ETRBIZECYBRRAZBER
TRz ERETE AERGFEREESR -
B AT A i DAL = PR BB S B B P2
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor report is Lau, Ming Tak Simeon.

D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Lau, Ming Tak Simeon

Practising Certificate Number: P07579

Hong Kong, 30 December 2022

A8 EHMAIKRARAT CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeERkHEMEEEER

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

2022 2021
—E—-— —E-—%F
Notes HK$ HK$
M it BT Vow

Turnover - 56 (25,149,110) 76,705,162
Other income, net E AUk ASF B 7 (1,276,970) 6,736,988
Administrative expenses THER (17,036,194) (11,589,451)
Expected credit loss on financial assets 1% # 84k 451 BR

at amortised cost, net of reversal M EEEREEER MERER 17 (19,312,686) (4,785,190)
Expected credit loss on deposits Re REMEBYRIEZ

and other receivables, net of reversal FEHEEEE MkED 15 (18,181,068) 126,823
Share-based payment expenses LARR 1D BB 2 X 22 (4,097,371) (2,802,996)
Operating (loss) gain ZiE (BB ks (85,053,399) 64,391,336
Finance costs ELE= PPN 8 (3,072,151) (1,667,104)
(Loss) profit before tax BRELA (B5E)EF 9 (88,125,550) 62,724,232
Income tax expenses FriS 8 X 10 = -
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BR)EF (88,125,550) 62,724,232
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive 72 FRERFHE AELS

(expense) income for the year AEE (FR)EIR

attributable to equity holders of 2H(AX)KWEER

the Company (88,125,550) 62,724,232
Dividend % 2 11 - —
(Loss) earnings per share B (18 &F 12

Basic (loss) earnings per share BRER (EE) &F (0.21) 0.18

Diluted (loss) earnings per share GHcEE (E1E) BT (0.21) 0.17
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REUBARRR

At 30 September 2022 A= ==FhA=+H

2022 2021
—E:—= —E-—F
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment %= M 14 553,608 —
Financial assets at fair value EARBETAEBRZEEZ
through profit or loss A E 16 2,147,000 8,069,180
Investments in financial assets R EATIER 2
at amortised cost MBEEERE 17 117,955,260 151,275,464
120,655,868 159,344,644
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - ZE2 Rk
other receivables H b E W FRTB 15 81,127,133 72,818,023
Financial assets at fair value EBEARBEAERRE
through profit or loss MG EE 16 245,413,902 263,876,612
Investments in financial assets R HR AR 2
at amortised cost HHEEEKRE 17 47,808,407 46,364,972
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 16,692,655 11,912,344
391,042,097 394,971,951
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals EMENRERESER 19 20,034,528 28,101,966
Overdrafts B 18 6,079,340 —
26,113,868 28,101,966
Net current assets RBEEFE 364,928,229 366,869,985
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEZAEBRRBERE 485,584,097 526,214,629
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Convertible bonds A AR (& 5 20 15,811,408 =
Deferred tax liability REFHEEE 862,206 =
16,673,614 =
Net assets HEBE 468,910,483 526,214,629
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= v o
e MR R
At 30 September 2022 R=FT - —FHLA=+H
2022 2021
—E=-= T —4F
Notes HK$ HK$
bt BT BT
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital RN 21 105,032,062 85,809,562
Reserves i 363,878,421 440,405,067
Total equity attributable to EATRERFEAEMN
equity holders of the Company DA 468,910,483 526,214,629
Net asset value per share FREEFE 23 1.12 1.53

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 139 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 December 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Cheong Yee
F RE=

Director

EZE

HNFAOREF1B9ACHEAMBREAER T -
FHt_A-tHESESSHERRBETRYANUTE

FREREEF:

Kong Fanpeng
EN
Director

BE




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREEBR

Convertible Capital Share
Share Share  bonds equity reduction options  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Total equity
THRRES
B REE BinAE REAHARE BRERE EE | BHEH
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 October 2020 RZB-ZF+A—-H 68,872,062 1,315,163,854 4,920,818 22,826,010 2,106,500  (965,218,525) 448,670,719
Profit and total comprehensive AEERNR2EREALE
income for the year - - - - - 62,724,232 62,724,232
Exercise of share options 716 R i 3,437,500 = = = (1,320,000) 1,320,000 3,437,500
Recognition of equity-settied R R E U R AR
share-based payments EOINEN - - - - 2,802,996 = 2,802,996
Conversion of convertible bonds BB ARES 13,500,000 = (4,920,818) = = = 8,579,182
At 30 September 2021 and RZIBZ-$ARA=+HR
1 October 2021 “Z--F+A-8 85,809,562 1,315,163,854 - 22,826,010 3,589,496  (901,174,293) 526,214,629
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFRARZERIAR
expense for the year - - - - - (88,125,550)  (88,125,550)
Placing of new shares (Note 21(b)) BEMBRN (Hit21b)) 17,160,000 (258,721) - - - - 16,901,279
Exercise of share options Brd 1 2,062,500 - - - (786,550) 786,550 2,062,500
Recognition of equity-settied HRUREEEUR D BER
share-based payments EIRNE - - - - 4,097,371 - 4,097,371
Recognition of equity component of BRRRES 2 ERT S -
convertible bond, net of deferred tax MNBRELEHRE = = 7,760,254 = = = 7,760,254
At 30 September 2022 R-BE-_—_fAA=+H 105,032,062 1,314,905,133 7,760,254 22,826,010 6,900,317  (988,513,293) 468,910,483
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

MERENER

FLOWS

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Amortisation of fair value adjustment
on investments in financial assets
at amortised cost
Dividend income from investments
in listed securities
Gain on disposal of investments in
financial assets at amortised cost
Loss on modification of investments
in financial assets at amortised cost
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Interest income
Convertible bond interest expenses
Interest paid on margin payable and
overdrafts
Net realised loss (gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised loss (gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Expected credit loss on financial assets
at amortised cost, net of reversal

Expected credit loss on deposits and
other receivables, net of reversal

Share-based payment expenses

Fair value loss on derivative asset

Loss on conversion of convertible bonds

REEH
Braan (B1E) & A
EVEH AT A%

BB K i &
G R AN D)) R 2 B 7S
BEREZRARE

B 5

KERE EWERFLZ

B B A
HERIZE IR ARG R 2
MBEERE 2 W

fi& i i 8 56 P AR 51 Bl 2 B 75

BEREZEE
HERE k& E 2 WS
BN

AT AR A 25 A B R X
ENAFRHERBEXZHE

BAREFAERZREY
MBEEZCER
B8 (W) 38
BAREFAEBRZREY
MEEEZRER
B8 (W) 38
BB R W IBEE
BHEEER  MERERE
ma REM R IR 2B
FEEBR MERBO
VAR D R ERE 2 R F XX
TTEBEMNARERE
WA R R E S Z B R

2022
—E-CF
HK$
Vi o
(88,125,550)

136,321

5,658,584
(370,581)
(200,809)

5,278,056

(24,593,38;)

36,897

3,035,254

23,956,983

22,349,021
19,312,686

18,181,068
4,097,371
180,672

2021
—E-—F
HK$

BT

62,724,232

(172,281)

(240,000)
(27,719,737)

1,667,104

(9,481,598)

(45,741,795)
4,785,190

(126,823)
2,802,996

73,761

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net

(Increase) decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease in other payables and accruals

LELESEDANEERS

wE

BAREFABREE 2B
BEZMFE

BN IR REe R EAER
KR (B0) B

H Al 8 5RIE e B A B R

(11,067,409)

(19,504,815)

(16,290,178)
(8,067,438)

(11,428,951)

(32,626,906)

8,633,517
(107,123)

Cash used in operations
Dividend income received from investments

REXBHMARE
BRI E EHREFZBE WA

(54,929,840)

(35,529,463)

in listed securities 370,581 172,281
Interest paid on margin payable and ENAFBRRIERESZ ZFE
overdrafts (3,035,254) (1,667,104)
Interest received B2 U F & 23,421,634 17,030,069
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZSMABRLS REE (34,172,879) (19,994,217)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERETRER

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$ HK$
B e BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchases of bonds BEES (20,000,000) (29,849,180)
Purchases of plant and equipment BERE k& (689,929) =
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment & B E K & & 2 Fr{8 508 - 240,000
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets & [B14% # 4 Ak 7~ 71 BR 2 B 7%
at amortised cost BEZFSHE 5,000,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of investments in R R SR AR I BR 2
financial assets at amortised cost PEEEREZFTISHE 1,000,000 16,334,867
Repayment of amounts receivable EEPERE ZERFIE
on disposal of investment 7,600,000 24,900,000
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING BRETEH (FFA)MERESTFE
ACTIVITIES (7,089,929) 11,625,687
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETBRERSE
Proceeds on issue of convertible bonds BITA R E S 2 FT1S5KE 21,000,000 -
Proceeds from exercise of share options ITEBERR#E 2 FTiS 3R TA 2,062,500 3,437,500
Proceeds from issuance of share upon Bl &SRR IR (D
placement, net of transaction costs FriS I8 » B R B A 16,901,279 -
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETEBHFEBES 39,963,779 3,437,500
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBELEEYRLDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,299,029) (4,931,030)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURERESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,912,344 16,843,374
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREZRESEEY
END OF YEAR
— represented by — R 25 10,613,315 11,912,344
Bank balances and cash RITEHBERE 18 16,692,655 11,912,344
Overdrafts FEX (6,079,340) =
10,613,315 11,912,344
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Room 2302, 23rd
Floor, New World Tower I, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 October 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions” beyond

30 June 2021
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAHFAIRKEITEBNBHREER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (IEB8MHHREERD]) ()
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily RAEAFERFINERZRETEBMBRE
effective for the current year (Continued) 8| (|)

The application of the Amendments to References to the NEBER BB HFHEER AR IEL I
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the MZEET REETBBEMBRELENGEAER
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material RAFERBEFEZHBRI KRR R S#
impact on the Groups’ financial positions and performance for REZSHREMBRENBRREL/BEATE -

the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)3

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs to used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and/or annual
rates of depreciation adopted, if any, are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Office equipment 25%
Computers 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Vessel 25% — 50%
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases is recognised as
expense on a straight line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Financial asset or financial liability, which
is determined the fair value at initial recognition different
from the transaction price, measures the fair value by
using valuation technique with unobservable inputs used.
Differences may arise between the fair value at initial
recognition (which, in accordance with HKFRS 13 and
HKFRS 9, is normally the transaction price) and the amount
determined at initial recognition using the valuation technique.
Any such differences between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price which is not evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. After initial recognition, the deferred
differences as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises
from a change in a factor that market participants would take
into account when pricing the asset.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income or expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

In addition, a financial asset with an early termination term
is classified as financial assets at amortised cost only if the
prepayment amount substantially represented unpaid amounts
of principal and interest, which could include reasonable
additional compensation for the early termination of the
contract.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost

or fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.

()

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “Turnover” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowances for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including other receivables, investments in financial assets at
amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

66 BEEAEIBRERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

3. XEEFEEX#

£RIE (&)

BHBEE (&)

(i) BAAEFTAEmEIEZ N HEEE
TRERBEHEKATFERRAABIT AR
HErEWEEENEERKRAABTAR
HmEEBEEENENNTBEEEERD
REFFABREREZ-

ANERBRECUBEERER
SHMRBEAAENE EARAERERIE
BRIEZARER - NERAEROKELE
SRR T EBERY B EEMRRNE[K
BEME W ATEEREIENEE -

i Q/NDI ]

o ooy

B EEERE

REBHARBERBMBERE LR FIREGR R
EH) 758 & (818 H A 8 WA - 1R 35 A AR
IR BEERENRRENREFEY W
BEHEEEREREREG BHEEERNS
BEREWMESAHREN URREERR BN HE
RBIARH) B

2HEMEEREERAR TAREFFERA
FAFREENBOEHAMERNBREERSE -
Bz T 12 EHEEFEER®RE AR
12EARNFTREEENBOEHMERNEREER
ERE E2HEREEEEN o -FEHR
BAKENELEEBERERET YREBA
BANRZ —REBERIARERE AN E
AR5 B R R S0 TEUR) O RF (i #E 7T S 2K

AEEFEFM2EARREEBRENEREE
BIECERRB VI FERARDBREL I KX
BAT AEEeHRAEHRAEEER G
EEEERA=HEREEBERINB VT A
RFFEEZANT M REREEREEMABE

pi-
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P HmR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

g significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

3 existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

3 an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

68 HEHAIRERDE

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHBE #)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EWMIA (&)

Financial assets (Continued) BHBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) HBEERE (&)

(iv) Write-off policy (iv) HEHERZR
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is EBEENBETRIHTEEETRANBRERES
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe MBEKEARER IR SHFTEER
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of FEAWERF (UREZEEEFEAE) K
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been SESRMBEEME REEBATER
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy EEERE BEMIENMBEEDAIREAR
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets 5 E 1) U B2 Fr B o8 HIl 01T o MUSH IS B AR
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities ILHEREGH - FMEZRKBRBEENEER
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into R

account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) BHEEBENG=ERER

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability FEHEERENTEREOME BEHNEX
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the E(AMIMRBHBENERKND)ARESL
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. [E B2 ) B o B AL R RIBAOB KR KT AE
The assessment of the probability of default and loss SEEFHAEER  WHATEEEREL
given default is based on historical data adjusted by B-EMEEREENMTRBRASEBEE
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects BEHANNERRAEEEENEREZNES
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is o

determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all —BmE EHEEEBEEREANEMAK
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in SENMESAYNE e REHERASEEK
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the BOWRERECLENER MRSRE IR
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective R EREEE N ERF RETAIR -

interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for MEEHEEBEEANASEESNEET
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level BXKFERVEBBENBRATNSITIE A&
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are BT ARk EESMH -

grouped by aging basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Modlification of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform in which the Group applies the practical expedient,
when the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in
a substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount
of the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including other payables
and overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability, equity and derivative
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability an
equity instrument and a derivative. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be remained in equity.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability, equity and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments in listed securities
including financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Other income is recognised whenever it is received or

receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 2, the directors of the Group are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Useful lives and residual values of items of

plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or
the residual values of items of plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. HEHTABPEREZETERIR (&)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(ii) Estimation of impairment loss recognised in

(i) EFFEAERRERZBERSTIRZ

respect of other receivables and investments in
financial assets at amortised cost

The Group individually assesses the ECL for other
receivables and investments in financial assets at
amortised cost. The assessment is based on the credit
profile of the debtors, and the historical repayment record
of the debtors taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the credit profile and the historical repayment record
of the debtors are reassessed and changes as the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s other receivable and investments in financial
assets at amortised cost are disclosed in Notes 15, 17
and 29(a).

(iii) Valuation of unlisted investments

In the absence of current prices in active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using discounted cash flow valuation
technique with input not based on observable market
data and other available information.

The carrying amounts of the unlisted investments
as at 30 September 2022 was HK$2,147,000 (2021:
HK$8,069,180), further details of which are set out in Note
16.

(iii)
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A TABERZETERR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iv) Income tax (iv) Fi8 8

The Group is subject to income tax. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of the business.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination

AEEABMAEH -ETMEHEETE
HEAHE -AEXBBEPZERH KT
B ARHEERAHIA

AEBERERESABMASIMNBEINRE
ZiEE AR EREERARAE M
ZEFHNRRBBERENEARSE
TR FRZEKFEELEE 26 BAR
H P 1S HR S R ST TR TR A

is made.
5. TURNOVER 5. BXH
The amount of each significant category of turnover and FHEREXETHENN R R R R
timing of revenue recognitions are as follows: T~
2022 2021
—E_-— —E - —4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net realised (loss) gain on financial assets &R AAE AR ([{RAAE
at fair value through profit or loss AER]RECMBEE 2
(“FVTPL”) BEER (FE)RFFE (23,956,983) 9,481,598
Net unrealised (loss) gain on financial BAREFABEREZWREES
assets at FVTPL KREIE (BB KEFE (22,349,021) 45,741,795
Dividend income from investments KEEMRHFZBREBA
in listed securities 370,581 172,281
Bank and bond interest income 1T REHFEWA 20,585,504 21,309,488
Gain on disposal of investments in 6 AR 8 K AR B BR 2
financial assets at amortised cost HHEERE 2 W= 200,809 =
(25,149,110) 76,705,162
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker for decisions about
resources allocated to the Group’s business components and
for the review of the performance of those components.

The principal activities of the Group are investments in
listed and unlisted companies. The Group has identified the
operating and reportable segments in the current year as
follows:

(i) Investments in listed securities and unlisted bonds
(i) Investment in unlisted securities

For the profit and loss, except for revenue, other income and
finance costs, others are not allocated to segment.

Plant and equipment, tax recoverable, certain amount of
accruals and certain amount of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents, were not

allocated to segment.
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e IR R MY R

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEFR (@)
Segment revenue and results PHBUMEREE

For the year ended 30 September 2022 BE-_ZE_—_FAA=1THLEE

84 BEHARERDE

Investment in

Investment in

listed securities unlisted
and unlisted bonds securities Unallocated Total
IHEER
FLHEFRE FLHEFRE FAE @t
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
Segment revenue P ATE (20,128,186) (5,022,180) 1,256 (25,149,110)
Expected credit loss on REHEIAIERZ
financial assets at amortised cost, UBEERAEEER:
net of reversal k&R (19,312,686) - - (19,312,686)
Expected credit loss on deposits HEREMEYTIEL
and other receivables, HEEEHE NRAR
net of reversal (3,193,440) (14,087,628) - (18,181,068)
Administrative expenses THER (5,658,584) - (11,377,610) (17,036,194)
Segment result HHBLE (48,292,896) (20,009,808) (11,376,354) (79,679,058)
Other income H A (5,278,056 4,007,878 (6,792) (1,276,970)
Share-based payment expenses WD BERAHAX - - (4,097,371) (4,097,371)
Finance costs BEKA (3,035,254) - (36,897 (3,072,151)
Loss before tax BB A (56,606,206) (16,001,030) (15,517,414) (88,125,550)
Income tax expenses FEREX - - - -
Loss for the year AEEER (56,606,206) (16,001,930) (15,517,414) (88,125,550)
Segment assets PHEE 425,371,752 69,542,896 16,783,317 511,697,965
Segment liabilities NHEE 21,955,902 - 20,831,580 42,787,482
Other segment information HttpHEs
Net realised loss on BANBIHABREEE
financial assets at FVTPL BYEEZCEBEEEE (19,874,383) (4,082,600) - (23,056,983)
Net unrealised loss on BOAEFABRREZ
financial assets at FVTPL MBEAE RS ERSE (21,409,441) (939,580) = (22,349,021)
Interest income R ON 20,584,248 = 1,256 20,585,504
Amortisation of fair value adjustment 1R & # 5K A 3IE 2 BT A E
on investments in financial assets REZDABAZEHR
at amortised cost (5,658,584) - - (5,658,584)
Expected credit losses on REREMBYWFIEL
deposits and other receivables, BEBEEEE NRER
net of reversal (3,193,440) (14,087,628) - (18,181,068)
Expected credit losses on RARRAIEZ B BEE
investments in financial assets REZRHEEER:
at amortised costs, net of reversal MNE#ERE (19,312,686) = = (19,312,686)

CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEFR (@)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHBREREE (E)
For the year ended 30 September 2021 HE_T-_-—FAA=THLFE

Investment in
listed securities

Investment in

and unlisted bonds unlisted securities Unallocated Total
ITEHR
FLMESFRE FEMEFRE KAE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue a6 74,660,481 2,042,860 1,821 76,705,162
Expected credit loss on REHEHAIEZ
financial assets at amortised cost, UBEERAEEER:
net of reversal k&R (4,785,190) - - (4,785,190)
Expected credit loss on deposits REREMEWTIEL
and other receivables, BBEEHE NRER
net of reversal 1,302,003 (1,352,776) 177,596 126,823
Administrative expenses TBER - - (11,589,451) (11,589,451)
Segment result NEFEE 71,177,294 690,084 (11,410,034) 60,457,344
Other income Hip A - 6,410,249 326,739 6,736,988
Share-based payment expenses WRDBER AHAX - - (2,802,996) (2,802,996)
Finance costs BERR (1,667,104) - - (1,667,104)
Profit before tax BR AT R 69,510,190 7,100,333 (13,886,291) 62,724,232
Income tax expenses FEREX - - - =
Profit for the year KEZRH 69,510,190 7,100,333 (13,886,291) 62,724,232
Segment assets NBEE 519,144,070 22,396,151 12,776,374 554,316,595
Segment liabilities NHEE 23,901,000 - 4,200,966 28,101,966
Other segment information HthpHEs
Net realised profit on BOAENABREEL
financial assets at FVTPL MBEELEERENFE 9,481,598 - - 9,481,598
Net unrealised gain on BAAEFABRREZ
financial assets at FVTPL MEEEZRER NS FE 43,698,935 2,042,860 = 45,741,795
Interest income MEKLA 21,309,488 6,410,249 - 27,719,737
Gain on disposal of plant and HERE RRE WE
equipment - - 240,000 240,000
Expected credit losses on e REMEYRTELZ
deposits and other receivables, HBEEER NRER
net of reversal 1,302,003 (1,352,776) 177,596 126,823
Expected credit losses on RE R A& Z
investments in financial assets HEEERE L
at amortised costs, net of reversal BHEEEE NRAR (4,785,190) - - (4,785,190)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The Group’s operations and specified non-current assets are

located in Hong Kong.

Given that the nature of the Group’s operation is investment

in listed and unlisted companies, there was no information

regarding major customers as determined by the Group.

2 EBE R ()
2SR EE (F)

AEBz2ERBEFRRBEEMNREE -

ENAEEN LSBT ARE LT RIELTAR
Fil s A EEBRATEESHER -

7. OTHER INCOME, NET 7. HW A FHE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other interest income H Ath R 2 A 4,007,878 6,410,249
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & EE k& E 2 Wi - 240,000
Loss on modification of investments 1EIREER AR 2
in financial assets at amortised costs M EEREZEE (5,278,056) -
Sundry income HIEUA 173,880 160,500
Fair value loss on derivative asset METABEZAAEBE (180,672) -
Loss on conversion of convertible bonds i A[ A A (& 5 2 &5 18 - (73,761)
(1,276,970) 6,736,988
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMEMSK
2022 2021
—E—- —E-—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest expenses on borrowings: BEZMERXE
— margin accounts —fFREFP 2,225,654 1,667,104
— overdrafts —FEY 809,600 =
— convertible bonds — AR ESH 36,897 =
3,072,151 1,667,104
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9. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRBiAT (EHE)RF
The Group’s (loss) profit before tax has been arrived at after RERZBRBAT (BE)&F 2 Mk -
charging:
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—4F
Notes HK$ HK$
bt iF BT BT
Directors’ emoluments e 13 2,482,814 2,164,098
Staff costs BT RA
— Salaries, allowances and — e R REMBR
other benefits 3,147,121 2,937,904

- MPF Scheme contributions —RIEERFEIMR 81,149 80,568

— Share-based payment expenses —UROABEMRZHRFAX 2,995,757 2,018,898
Total staff costs BMETINA(BEESEIE)

(including Directors’ emoluments) 8,706,841 7,201,468
Auditor’s remuneration 2 SN B < 550,000 500,000
Depreciation for plant and equipment MEREETE 136,321 =
Amortisation of fair value adjustment REHK AR 2

on investments in financial assets MIBEEREZ ARBERAEHEE

at amortised cost 17 5,658,584 -
Operating lease rentals KEHRD 2HBE 145,200 145,200 Ji

Donation 1B 393,000 292,600




10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profits for the year ended
30 September 2022.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for the year
ended 30 September 2021 as the assessable profits are
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward from prior

years.

The income tax for the year ended 30 September 2022
and 2021 can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income respectively as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax BRELAT (1R & A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV IRRMEE

10. FiIB BB

HRAEBBE-_T-_—_FAA=-THELFEY
BERERRVUEN RABRBF BN ERELBE-

HRERTENHBEFEAENREBREER
i HBE T - —FAA=ZTHILFELE
REEMNEHIELEE-

BE_ T - FR-_ZFT-_—FNA=ZFTHILFE
2RI BEEABEREMEEKRER 2B
AT (B8 B RS BIT

Nominal tax at domestic income tax rate XA TSI K16.5% T H 2 BZHE A

of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (== —% :16.5%)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAEARBWA Z RIS

tax purpose
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of temporary differences RERLREZE 2

not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

RERBZBABRZHH
BRI ARERZRABEZ

2022 2021
—E-C—f& —E-—4F
HK$ HK$

BT BT
(88,125,550) 62,724,232
(14,540,716) 10,349,498
(87,956) (1,067,156)
9,410,644 1,713,226
(2,365) (21,937)
5,220,393 826,896

previously not recognised MG E - (11,800,527)
Income tax expense BT 15 %t B 2 = =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$890,622,532 (2021: HK$859,242,329) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profits stream. Unrecognised tax
losses of HK$258,542 (2021: HK$1,158,910) expired during
the year. Other unrecognised tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 = —Z -~ AA=1THILFE

11. DIVIDEND 11. B2
The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for EESg UV TMTERRNEBE-S-_FhLA=+H
the year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: Nil). EFEZRE(ZEZ—F &)

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B% (F518) B F
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per ARARBEEAEBEERERNREE (FE)AF
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TR A T EIRETE -

following data:

2022 2021
—E-_fF —E-—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) earnings: (&) &BH -
(Loss) earnings for the year attributable ARFTESRERNREE (BE)BAH
to owners of the Company RARERABERFE (BB AT
for the purposes of basic and
diluted (loss) earnings per share (88,125,550) 62,724,232
Number of shares: R EE -
Weighted average number of AR EERER (EBB) BN
ordinary shares for the purpose of TR R
basic (loss) earnings per share 417,130,523 341,467,016
A 3
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: E7E# & TERMFZE
Share options AR —* 28,520,465
Convertible bonds AR &S =* =
Weighted average number of ordinary BREAEEREE (BB &AW
shares for the purpose of L AR N T #
diluted (loss) earnings per share 417,130,523 369,987,481
*  The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares * BE-—T-—FhrA=1H

for the year ended '0; September 2022. The share
options and convertik .‘o‘nds during the year ended
30 September 2022 wer i-dilutive.

o s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R MY R

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration

13. EEREREEEM=

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors

were as follows:

(a) EBM=E
ENHENTEESZHMEMT

Other emoluments

At e
Salaries,
allowances, MPF Share
and other  Performance Scheme options
Fees benefits bonus contributions expenses Total
e 28 BEE
e  REMERN EMIA SEMR BRERX @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Year ended HE-®-C-F
30 September 2022 NRZTHLEEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Chan Cheong Yee GER 600,000 - - 1,200 550,807 1,152,007
Kong Fanpeng HLAHE 360,000 - - - 550,807 910,807
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Cheung Wai Kin RER 180,000 - - - - 180,000
Lai Fun Yin REE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Lee Ming Gin ZHE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
1,380,000 - - 1,200 1,101,614 2,482,814

90 HZMAIBLAERADT CAPITAL VC LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2022 = —Z -~ AA=1THILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

13. EEREAREEEM S (&)

(a) E=M & (40

Other emoluments
Hi e
Salaries,
allowances, MPF Share
and other  Performance Scheme options
Fees benefits bonus  contributions expenses Total
Fo =i i ka
e REMER BRI SR BRERX @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B BT BT
Year ended Bz-2--%
30 September 2021 NA=+HLEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Chan Cheong Yee RE= 600,000 - - - 392,049 992,049
Kong Fanpeng HLALHE 360,000 - - - 392,049 752,049
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Cheung Wai Kin RER 180,000 - - - - 180,000
Lai Fun Yin REE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Lee Ming Gin ZHIE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
1,380,000 - - - 784,098 2,164,098 i

The directors’ fees shown above represented
emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertakings.

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 30 September 2022 and
30 September 2021. No incentive payment for joining
the Group or compensation for loss for office was
paid or payable to _dlvrector during the year ended
30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021.

—

ERAVIEZREE - BALIHEEES (B
WRARAIEMNBRAARB 2ESE) 2R
BoENRENZME-

RBE-_T-_—#hA=+tAR-_T—
ENA=+HILEE L&
REEAWS  RBES
AR —ENAz
{F fa] % 3 KB

N N
A2 R

—_




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MY R

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 13. EEREAREEEM S (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EEM< (&)
The remuneration of directors including the performance EEFM(BEEREL) TEFHEES
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee BEEMATZRBEEMSBEMET -

having regard to the performance of individual and
market trends.

(b) Senior management’s emoluments (b) EREEEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in REBRBE_T__FhLA=THIEF
the Group during the year ended 30 September 2022, EzREEasGTALREMA (ZEZ—F:
two (2021: two) were directors of the Company whose ME)ARARES FEZHMeHN EX A
emoluments were set out above. The emoluments of the BB (ZEZ—F ZB)RaHATZMH
remaining three (2021: three) highest paid individuals ST

were as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances e R REAMETF
and other benefits 1,725,000 1,707,000
MPF scheme contributions i e Er SR 35,450 16,550
Share options expenses BRERX 499,293 336,483
2,259,743 2,060,033
The emoluments of the three (2021: three) highest paid ZHR(ZEZ—F: =R)BaFALZHE
individuals fall in the following band: BUAT AR
2022 2021
—E-—&F e T
Emoluments band B < 48 B
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7€ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
No incentive payment for joining the Group or REE_T-_—FR=-ZZ=—FNLA=+
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable HIEFE #SEREFNEsHALT (BEE
to any highest paid individuals (including directors and ERHEMEE)ZINEMNEAMME  ER
other employees) during the year ended 30 September EMAREE 2 RIS AE BB E -

2022 and 2021.

Q2 EZMAIKLAERAT CAPITAL VC LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2022 = —Z -~ AA=1THILFE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. BEREHE
Furniture and Office Motor
fixtures equipment Computers vehicles Vessel Total
GRREE BHAZRB B "B fE st

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT BT
COsT &
At 1 October 2020 WZE-2£+A-H 318,736 215,432 169,300 5,779,249 3,087,651 9,570,368
Disposals HE - - - (2,204,755) - (2,204,755)
Written off ki S - - - (3,087,651) (3,087,651)
At 30 September 2021 and R-ZB--%AA=1H

1 October 2021 R=E=-%th-H 318,736 215,432 169,300 3,574,494 - 4,277,962

Additions NE - - - 689,929 - 689,929
At 30 September 2022 R-ZE--_fAB=1H 318,736 215,432 169,300 4,264,423 - 4,967,891

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RiHE

At 1 October 2020 RZE-TF+A—H 318,736 215,432 169,300 5,779,249 3,087,651 9,570,368

Eliminated on disposals HERE - - - (2,204,755) - (2,204,755)

Eliminated on written off HSH R E 85 - - - - (3,087,651)  (3,087,651)

At 30 September 2021 and RZZE--%£AA=1H

-1 October 2021 R=%=-%tA-H 318,736 215,432 169,300 3,574,494 - 4277962 A
Charge for the year KEEXH - - N 136,321 - 136,321

At 30 September 2022 W=E-—FfAA=+AH 318,736 215,432 169,300 3,710,815 = 4,414,283

CARRYING AMOUNT REE

At 30 September 2022 W=E-=fAA=+AH = E = 553,608 = 553,608

At 30 September 2021 R-E--#RA=+H - i 5 d




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R MY R

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

15. ANRE - REREMEKRK

RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
—E_ —E-—%F
Notes HK$ HK$
M it BT BT
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE R R EMmEWKIE
other receivables 609,302 864,030
Margin receivables FEUFF B IR (a) 13,121,935 584,907
Amounts receivable on HERE 2 B FIE
disposal of investments (b) 67,395,896 71,369,086
81,127,133 72,818,023

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other

receivables at the end of the reporting period approximated

their fair values.

Notes:

(@) Margin receivables are generated from investment in financial
assets at FVTPL, with interest rates ranged from 0.001% to
0.002% (2021: 0.001% to 0.05%) per annum for the year.

(b) The balance is represented by receivables from the purchasers

REHRR ANFE REeREMBERFKEAEZ
SN

HA
EEEEARERE-

(@) RAFE BEARBENABREEZMBEEER
ERTE £ 2 EWRF B B TR F A ER N T0.001E
£0.002FE (ZZE=—%:0.001EX0.05F )5t & °

(b) MEBRREBIATET ZHKELS]:

of:
2022 2021
—EB-—F =l = —ks
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Equity interests of: R HE
Starfame Investments Limited EREERRA A 3,379,234 5,816,379
Uni-Venture International Uni-Venture International
Investment Limited Investment Limited - 8,510,591
Kendervon Profits Inc. Kendervon Profits Inc. 50,073,057 57,042,116
Bonds issued by: RBEITZES:
Profit Big Enterprises Limited BT EERRRAA 13,806,560 =
Others HAh 137,045 -
67,395,896 71,369,086

QA EHEABAERADT CAPITAL VC LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2022 &= —Z - " A A=+THILFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 September comprise:

16. EAARBEFABEREEBECHMKEE

RAA=ZTRRARBFABRSRECHBEE

B

2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—F
Note HK$ HK$
e BT BT

Fair value: NIE:
Convertible bonds derivative AMRESITETA 20 3,216,299 =
Unlisted securities JEETES 2,147,000 8,069,180

Listed securities held for trading BEEELMES

— listed in Hong Kong — &8 L™ 242,197,603 263,876,612
Suspended stocks listed in Hong Kong  &#& T EEXZ 58095 (a) = -
247,560,902 271,945,792

Analysed as: DR
Current assets nBEE 245,413,902 263,876,612
Non-current assets ERMENE E 2,147,000 8,069,180
247,560,902 271,945,792




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note:

(@) The amount of suspended stocks represented the shares are
uncertain to resume trading in foreseeable future.

Particulars of the listed securities, which are included in the
ten largest investments of the Group held as at 30 September

2022 and 2021, are as follows:

Place of
Name Note incorporation
2R i ERRIBEH
WLS Holdings Limited (i)~ Cayman Islands*
ERERERAA HeEs*
-2022
-—%--F
- 2021
-Z%=-f
Hong Kong Education (Int') Investments Limited (i) Cayman Islands*
ERAE (BR)REEEARAR HERE"
-2022
-—%--F
- 2021
-ZZ--F
Seec Media Group Limited (i) Bermuda
HHREREBARAR ARE
-2022
-Z%-Zf
-2021
-Z%>-%

(iv) ~ Cayman Island

FERS
-Z%-Zf
-2021
-—%--F
China Jicheng Holdings Limited (v)  Cayman Island
PRERERERAE FeRs
- 2022
-Z%-Zf
-2021
-Z%=-f
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited (vi)  Bermuda
PREDXNEEERAR ARE
-2022
St Eamps
-2021
-Z%--&
AMCO United Holding Limited (vii)  Bermuda
ERERERAT ARE
- 2022
-2 =
- 2021
B

*

Continued in Bermuda with limited liability

06 EZAIBAERAT CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Particulars of

equity interest held

FERAREFE

Ordinary shares
LER

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
ERK

Ordinary shares
LRK

Ordinary shares
LRk

Ordinary shares
LRk

Acquisition

16. BEAREFABSEEECUBEE (8)

GEE
(8) Ef52 2N BB I8 SRR A B AR
2SI -

FHES(GIAZE-—FR-_F=_—FNA
STAREZARETARE) ZHENT

cost 30 Septemb

WERA
HKS
BT

47,803,136

50,169,822

13,704,592

26,019,608

19,718,159

19,732,291

15,001,822

5,778,087

2,952,147

61,398,571

61,346,379

49,944,048

49,044,048

Percentage of Percentage of
market value Unrealised Realised Dividend equity interest Net assets
to the Group’s gain/(loss) gain/(loss) received attributable to attributable to
Market value  total assets recognised for recognised for during the the Group the Group
asat as at the year ended the yearended  year ended as at as at

30 September 30 Sey 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 Septemt
7 53 Bz
hAZ+tB  AAZtH  AAZtH Bz

ZTHEERER LEE L¥E  AA=TAE RAA=TA RAA=TA
WhBZtH KEAE DRIKEE DRICER LHEE2  AREEE  AREER
2 BAl Wi/ (BB K&/ (58 BHRE REEZEEIL KERE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT BT BT AT
59,048,080 11.54% 11,244,944 (145,436) - 4.52% 22,020,852
31,916,760 5.76%  (18,253,062) - - 4.73% 25,967,085
23,859,200 4.66% 10,154,608 (2,399,633) - 2.50% 3,645,025
46,714,800 8.43% 20,695,192 - - 4.75% 7,960,810
21,096,494 4.42% 1,378,335 (23,776) - 2.58% 6,043,263
13,916,329 2.51% (5,815,962) - - 3.05% 8,723,000
16,789,500 3.28% 1,787,678 646,317 - 2.05% 4,094,486
10,220,000 2.00% 4,441,913 - - 3.39% 12,642,242
5,580,000 1.01% 2,627,853 - - 2.97% 14,883,874
3,581,556 0.70%  (57,817,015) (10,267) - 4.60% 18,218,714
14,109,680 2.55%  (47,236,699) - - 4.50% 19,716,795
1,988,640 0.39%  (47,955,408) - - 3.43% 3,221,285
13,257,600 2.39%  (36,686,448) - - 3.43% 4,462,053

* O RBREFEZERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of scaffolding, fitting out
services and other services for construction and buildings work,
provision of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
installation, maintenance services, money lending business,
securities brokerage, margin financing, securities investment
business and assets management business. Net loss attributable
to equity holders of approximately HK$11 million (year ended
30 April 2021: HK$17 million) was recognised for the year ended
30 April 2022. According to the latest published consolidated
financial statements of WLS Holdings Limited, as at 31 October
2022, its net asset value attributable to equity holders was
approximately HK$487 million (As at 31 October 2021: HK$549
million).

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (stock code:
1082) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of
private educational services, investment in securities and money
lending business. (Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders
of approximately HK$(33) million (year ended 30 June 2021:
HK$3.6 million) was recognised for the year ended 30 June
2022. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited,
as at 30 June 2022, its net asset value attributable to equity
holders was approximately HK$146 million (As at 30 June 2021:
HK$168 million).

SEEC Media Group Limited (stock code: 205) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in advertising and sales
of books and magazines; securities broking; money lending
and e-commerce. Net loss attributable to equity holders
of approximately HK$40 million (year ended 31 December
2020: HK$138 million) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2021. According to the latest published
consolidated financial statements of SEEC Media Group Limited,
as at 30 June 2022, its net asset value attributable to equity
holders was approximately HK$234 million (As at 30 June 2021:
HK$286 million).

Silver Tide Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1943) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of formwork
works services to both the public and private sectors in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. The formwork business
undertaken by the Group mainly include (i) traditional formwork
using timber and plywood; and (ii) system formwork using
aluminium and steel. (Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders
of approximately (HK$34 million) (year ended 31 March 2021:
HK$14 million) was recognised for the year ended 31 March
2022. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of Silver Tide Holdings Limited as at 30 September
2022, its net asset value attributable to equity holders was
approximately HK$200 million (As at 30 September 2021:
HK$221 million).

16. B A

Wit

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AREFAEBZREEZVBEE (&)

SERIERER QA (BRMHARS: 8021) R EKHE
NAIETBREREZEREZETIBRHEEER
BEERELRAMBZEREFIERE RHM
MIEE BERREREBESEMZTE REE
ﬁ&%ﬁ&%%ﬁéﬁ‘%ﬂiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ\é*“z%}ﬁ
BEBREAETEEE -REE-_T=-_F1A
StHHLEFERRARESEABRGERTFEA
#911,000,0008 T (BEZE =T =-—FMA=+H
ﬁi}* 17,000,000/ ) - IRIBEERZBRER
NE M EZEENBRR R F+
BA=+—H EBRRBEAREEEFEARY
487,000,000 T (R=ZT=-—F+A=+—8:
549,000,000/ 7T ) °

EXBB(BR)RESEER AR (RHARKR:
1082) REMB AR X ENRERELAHE K

BEREMMEEB - RBE-_S-__FX
A=1tRLFERARERE ARG (EB) /
i ) B 49(33,000,000) B T (BRE - T = —F X
A=+HI-%E:3,600,000%&T) - IRIEFZSHE

(AR RESEERARAEFTNEZHFEMBR
X MIFBFRA=TH ERERSA ARG

& EF1E 5 %146,000, OOO%TE(EAf? —F X
A =+H8 :168,000,0005% T ) °

BaEREEER QA (BRMHA:205) & HKH
BRARATERSTESRHEEERER BF
L MERETEE REBEE_T=-—F+=
A=+ BLEFERABREFEAEBRGERZF
%8 /4 4940,000,0008 T (BE =T =_ZF+=- A
=+—H % 138,000,000 7t ) ° 1R & B &=
HEBABRARRH B ZREMBRE R
T _FRNA-Z+H ERERBEABRGEEF
8 % #9234,000,0008 7 (R=T=—F A=+
H : 286,000,000/ 7T ) °

iﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(Hﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁwgm)&ﬁmg

NEEEZRBEARSZTAEERLE RILE R
REBRIERES - EABENEREEEZZBE
(i) B AR A R 2k AR B 35 9 (8 4 AR AR ¢ R (ii) £ A
EERMAENAZGER - REE-_F=-F=A4
St HULEFEERREZE ARG (BB)
# A & # (34,000,000 L) (BE_F=-—F=
B =+— B IF%E 14,000,000 7T ) ° 18 1% 5 )8
TREBAREHMTIBZREMBRE R
—ZEAA=TH ERBEBEARGEEFE
749200,000, OOO%E(EA T_—FhA=1+8:
221,000,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV IRRMEE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

China Jicheng Holdings Limited (Stock code:1027) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella
parts such as plastic cloth and shaft. Net loss attributable to
equity holders of approximately RMB128 million (year ended
31 December 2020: RMB34 million) was recognised for the year
ended 30 December 2021. According to the latest published
consolidated financial statements of China Jicheng Holdings
Limited, as at 30 June 2022, its net asset value attributable to
equity holders was approximately RMB338 million (As at 30 June
2021: RMB415 million).

China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited (stock code: 802) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
internet and mobile’s application and related accessories and
trading of security and biometric products. Net loss attributable
to equity holders of approximately HK$32 million (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$42 million) was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2021. According to the latest
published consolidated financial statements of China e-Wallet
Payment Group Limited as at 30 June 2022, its net asset value
attributable to equity holders was approximately HK$396 million
(As at 30 June 2021: HK$438 million).

AMCO United Holding Limited (stock code: 630) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) provision of
manufacture and sale of medical devices products; (ii)
manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products; (iii) provision
of construction services in building construction, building
maintenance and improvement works, project management,
renovation and decoration works; (iv) provision of money
lending; and (v) investment in securities. Net loss attributable
to equity holders of approximately HK$17 million (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$34 million) was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2021. According to the latest published
consolidated financial statements of AMCO United Holding
Limited, as at 30 June 2022, its net asset value attributable to
equity holders was approximately HK$94 million (As at 30 June
2021: HK$130 million).

The Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of
HK$97,717,941 (2021: HK$107,879,456) to secure the margin
payables granted to the Group.

98 EHAIRERLE
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

16. BEAREFABSEEECUBEE (8)

Kzt (%)

PREKERAERAR (BRHGAE:1027) REMK
BRAAIFENEHERKEEPOENE BERS
EABTHG mBRARPE - RBEE-T=—
F+ZA=T—HILEFEEARERFEAEGE
BRE AN ARY128,000,000T (BE-_T-F
F+ZA=1+—HIEFE: AR¥34,000,0007T) °
REPREXIERERABDNSFNNEZIGATE
BE R-ZT-ZZFA=1+HB EREFFA
JEAE B EFE B AR338,000,000T (R=F
——%XA=1+8: AR%415,000,0007T) °

FEBERYMEEAR QA (KRMHA:802) %
HEWMBARETEXREEHALTFHERREX XA
BEGEBURLHREDHINERE S -NE
EZT - F+ AT RALETFEERRES
B AEALE 18 F 5 A 432,000,000/ T (B &=
T-TF+=F=+—H1EFE:42,000,000%
) MBEPEEAINEEARABSHHEZ
BAMBHRE R-_E-—FXA=1+0 HR#
A AFEAE & EF{E 5 4396,000,00078 7T (R =
T = —%F75A=+H 438,000,000 T ) °

ERERERAA (KON :630) REMBER
AXENRB()VRHNERHEEBERBES (i)
HERHELEBERLER: () REEFRE B
FHREREETIR BHEEE EBEREMHIRES
HZBERS: (V) IRERE: R(v)BHFERE-R
HE-_ZT-—F+-A=-t+—BLTFEwHERRE
B A FE{E BB F %8 /A 417,000,000 7T (B =
ZE-FEF+ZA=+—H1EFE 34,000,000
B cBEBEERERARD AT AZZILEH
BHRE R-T-_—FA=Z+H EBRESHA
& {5 & = R B & 4994,000,0008 T (R =T = —
#7358 =+ H :130,000,000/&7T) °

REBD 97,717,941 T (ZFE = — &
107,879,456/8 L) I A Bt ABRRE 2 U iE
BEEF EANEEERNENITRERENE

&~
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 &= —Z - " A A=+THILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

AMORTISED COST

The fair value of the Group’s investments in bonds issued

in Hong Kong were measured using valuation techniques in

which some significant inputs are not based on observable

market data.

Investments in financial assets

at amortised cost
Fair value adjustment at inception
Amortisation of fair value adjustment

AT R Z
MHEERE
N R EHE
APREERES 3

17.

BBERSIIRIMBEERE

AEBRBEARTZESFREZAAETNERL
FRABEMSBBEAEETERBARE G
BERMmEE-

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$ HK$
BT BT

154,892,293 186,502,970
16,529,958 11,137,466
(5,658,584) -

Less: Non-current assets

B IEREEE

165,763,667 197,640,436
(117,955,260) (151,275,464)

Included in current assets

AR EE

47,808,407 46,364,972

No fair value gain or loss at inception is recognised in profit

or loss in the current year.

%
&

RAFE UERNBRPERNIEALEKRER
B8 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 &%

==

FAA=Z+RILEFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST (Continued)
Particulars of the bonds held as at 30 September 2022 and
2021, are as follows:

Name

Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited
BRAT

Hao Wen Holdings Limited
EXARERAT
- 2022

e

-0
E-f

AMCO United Holding Limited
EFARERLT

Seec Media Group Limited
HREEEEERAT

- 2022

R 3

Sincere Smart Internafional Limited

Sincere Smart Internafional Limited

-
R 3

Luxxu Group Limited
BEEEARAT
- 2022

—g--

-0
Y

S

China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited
AEaxfEEERAT

Profit Big Enterprises Limited"
(formerly known as VIP credit Limited)
BHEZERLA!
(HABAANBRRAR)
-0
o e

Place of Acquisition
Notes  incorporation cost
L]
Ki  aRAieR it
HKS
A
(i) Hong Kong
[
42,000,000
42,000,000
i) Hong Kong
ki
20,000,000
20,000,000
(i) Cayman slands
REHE
42,500,000
42,500,000
(i) Bermuda
[
30,000,000
30,000,000
(iv)  Bermuda
[i1 3
20,000,000
(v)  British Virgin
Islands
ZRARES
18,000,000
18,000,000
(i) Cayman lslands
REES
17,000,000
17,000,000
(vil) ~ Bermuda
20,000,000
20,000,000
(viil) - Hong Kong
&#
25,000,000

Fair value
adjustment
atinception

(7001948)

(1021948)

(258747

(2.587472)

(5,392492)

(152846

(1528046)

Redemption
of bond

AEgz
HKS

s
B

(5000000

A The bond was being sold during the year.

100 =#HAIRERAH

CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Loss on

Interest - modification

5,245,398

4078794

1,545,241

1,568,333

4,756,555

4,654,124

2,092,051

2905479

.17

1573545

1,573,548

1,020,000

1,020,000

1395,49

1,637,930

1,500,003

bR
HKS

s
B

Expected
credit loss

B4
EEER
HKS
i

(1910818) (135295616)

(268,825)

(3729854)

631,238

(5.945,320)

(3,099,627)

(2843104)

(6508963)

6,170,236)

(63127

(4.330,698)

(3,869,698)

(3676.880)

(2,681,433

(3385047)

(2,376,545)

(2888521)

(280537)

(B700812)

Carrying
amount

EE
K

P
T

2,783.219

3,111,526

17,216,789

18,715,139

32,309.46

36,396.416

26,302,012

28,565,781

170027

16,896,865

16,992,115

14,634,953

16,643,455

11,869,382

17219347

17,799,191

RZBE-—FR-F

FEBWT:

Percentage of
Fair value  portfolio
EfRE2
MBELERZ
DME  RERSZEAM
HKS
i
4699108 1%
4033930 13%
1149895 5%
19679432 6%
J4019 %
4598157 14l
830172 6%
32083160 10%
12550613 3%
19261062 5%
18209923 6%
17520503 4%
16740578 %
1607654 4%
20807318 6%
25693665 8%
*

fair value of significant
investments to the
Group's investment

Percentage of

fair value of significant
investments to the

Group's total
assets
EfRE2
DMETEEZ
EELEVAMY

)

Th

%

o

Th

L)

5

)

Zh

%

3

3

3

3

&%

)

17. BBERFFRZMBEERE (8

Terms

From 31 October 2020 to 30 October 2025
F+A=+-AE-F-RETAZTA

From 28 October 2019 to 27 October 2022
ZE-REHAZtNBECRCCETAC TR

From 1 November 2020 to 31 Qctober 2025
F+-f-BEZEzRETA=T-R

From 12 October 2021 fo 12 January 2027
CRC-ETATIREIECtE-RTzA
From 12 October 2018 to 11 October 2021
- N\FHATCRECEC-FHAT-R

From 18 March 2022 to 17 March 2028
CECEZRTNBECIRINEZATHA

From § January 2020 to 7 January 2023
CRCRE-RNBECRIZE-AtB

From 31 January 2020 to 30 January 2023
CRCRE-ATt-RECRCZE-AIHR

8 January 2021 o 7 January 2026
£-FN\REZR=7E-AtAH

From 3 January 2019 to 2 January 2022
ZE-h§-R=REZR-Cf-ACR

ZEFRAFEEH-

Z—FhAA=THFAEZE

Coupon
rate pa.

6.5%

8%

6.5%

85%

8%

1%

10.5%

10%

6%

12%

9%

10%
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST (Continued)

Notes:

U]

Gold Medal is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and principally engaged in money lending business. It
is a wholly owned subsidiary of WLS Holdings Limited which
is listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8021). According to the terms of the agreement and
subject to certain conditions, both the Group and Gold Medal
have the early redemption rights as follows:

The Group can request early redemption of the bond at 100%
of the outstanding principal amount and 50% of the outstanding
coupon.

Gold Medal can early redeem the bond at 100% of the total
amount of such bond together with any payment of interests
accrued up to the date of such early redemption. An additional
1% will be given to the Group, together with the outstanding
principal and coupon. HK$5,060,000 interest was received from
Gold Medal for the year ended 30 September 2022.

The interest rate of both bonds have been changed to 6.5%
since 1 February 2022. The modification of interest rate was
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

Hao Wen is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability and principally engaged in money lending and
processing and trading of electronic parts. It is listed on the
GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 8019).
There is no provision of terms in the agreement regarding early
redemption rights. HK$4,675,000 interest was received from Hao
Wen for the year ended 30 September 2022.

The interest rate of both bonds have been changed to 8.0%
since 1 January 2022. The modification of interest rate was
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

17. BBERFFRZMBEERE (8

Wit -

V)

CHRE—BREBEMRIZERDAA EEH#
EREEB -EAERERBERRE (REBH
RFATGEM £ (B 5%:8021) )22 EH B R
Bl REBEZBEREREFTHRGERRT AEM@
K& ®I9H 0T 12 5 B 4

AEE A ERZI100% 2 REEAR S ENE0% 2
RAEERSRABEES -

SRR ERAS ZHBEN100%E Hﬁi}zﬁ
@ B A ) ST AS A BRI B 55 o MY

M ERRKEERAERE L‘Hq%é%ﬁ;%@oﬁé@
E-E-—FAA=Z+TALEE ASHRIF
£5.5,060,000/% 7T ©

B-F--F-f-RE REEANARSE
B % 56.5% - RIBEEA S FEGERHRBA
BIFEE I RBH G EHBORBRLRE
ERERHE TR GHFREDR0% Bt R4
ZEEET T TEUEE TS -L

BHEEMRYZERAR =
EHRERERETEDUNIRES HREFH
Bt 22 FT GEM £ (BR H R 5% : 8019) ° 17 3% W &
ERARAMBERNEZ G -RBE-_T=-_FNA
=+ HIEFE - A6 SORER 54,675,000 7T ©

HXE—HEHRAES

BE-ZT-__F-A- B ZFEFNMNXHE
B2 /38.0% ° 1R % E 2 RIE - Al X B2 2 R A
BB E I - RIBH R 153%%ﬁﬂ5’\lﬂﬁ$£%$m§
BRRBEBREROFREDLR10% Bt 12
% H B E AR EE R AN B PR
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INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

AMORTISED COST (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

AMCO is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and principally engaged in manufacturing and selling of medical
devices and plastic moulding products, providing construction
services, money lending and securities investment. It is listed on
the Main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
630). There is no provision of terms in the agreement regarding
early redemption rights. HK$3,787,500 interest was received for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

The interest rate has been changed to 10.5% since 12 October
2021,
the bond further extended 5 years from 12 January 2022 to

and the bond was extended to 12 January 2022. Then

12 January 2027 and the interest rate remained at 10.5% per
annum. The modification of interest rate and extension were
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

Seec Media Group Limited (stock code: 205) is a company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. It is engaged in
investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of advertising agency services and distribution of
books and magazines in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and the securities broking business, money lending business
and provision of e-commerce platform services and sales of
high-tech products in Hong Kong. There is no provision of terms
in the agreement regarding early redemption rights. There was
no interest received for the year ended 30 September 2022.

The Group considers the early termination charge on financial
assets represents reasonable compensation for the early
termination, in which these financial assets are classified as

financial assets at amortised cost.

Sincere Smart is a company incorporated in BVI with limited
liability and engaged in investment holding. Its subsidiary is
principally engaged in the application software industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC specialising in information management
solutions offered as SaaS through ERP cloud platform
addressing business requirements of the retail and services
industries. There is no provision of terms in the agreement
regarding early redemption rights. HK$2,160,000 interest was
received from Sincere Smart for the year ended 30 September
2022.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED

17. BBERFFRZMBEERE (8

Kzt (%)

(iii)

(iv)

EXA—BMREREIMAIZERAF £
NERERHEBERBREBEAER R
BIERE RERBHFRE -HREBHIMER
(AR RSR - 630) o 1k I 48 5 B 4% Al & 2 4
ZEX -RBEE_E-_—_FAA=THLEE K
B FI| 83,787,500 7T °

BE-_Z-_—F+A+-_B#E MNXEEHAE
10.5% BESEEHE-_E=-__F—A+=H-
ZEFBEEH T -__F-A+t-HE—FE
BHAFE-_T-_+tF—A+=8 WNERFEHNE
10.5% 5t 8 o R 1R T 285 T = 8015 % R AT B 4
REBIELAM -BEFER BEFHOFSRES

MERREEREFERITRAFHREDHN10% - Bt
RERBHEEFREENFAERBETRER-

MEEREREERR AR (B LI%:205) 8 —H
RHRESEHESEMKZZERAFLNEE éﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ
TREM-HETBRERAEZB MAMBEA
ERdhE ARLMB ([ E] )fﬁE%?ﬂ#\E%ﬁﬁ
REARDHEEREDS AR BEREESR
%E%i‘* HMEEXEBUARRHEFFHFERE R

S = RHRE o 5 5 3 R B R AR AR AR 2 1R
N-RBE_T-_FAA=THLFE LEK
BALE

AEERS FRMBEAENRERLIEARIER
FREMAEFME MZEVBEERD ERE
BHKASN R M BEE -

Sincere SmartE — MR EBE L HE XML
ZERAR REBERELRR -EWBARETERE
Ry I%ﬁéiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂiﬁ% CERTEEIR

sHEIEm T e FEANRHERIRT  RHERE
f§ﬁ¢>?iﬁﬂ<'ﬁ¢ais ERRBEOEL TR M

EVEAERAIBEHEZI G -REBEE=_T =
ENA=+HIFE B8Sincere Smart ELFI S
2,160,000;% JT °
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17. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

AMORTISED COST (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Luxxu Group Limited is a company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liability and principally engaged in design
and sales of prestige and high-end watches and accessories;
design, production and assembly of watches for OEM customers;
and manufacture and sales of own brands watches. It is listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
1327). There is no provision of terms in the agreement regarding
early redemption rights. HK$1,530,000 interest was received for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

China e-Wallet (stock code:802) and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the business of internet and mobile’s
application and related accessories and trading of security and
biometric products. HK$2,200,000 was received from China
e-Wallet for the year ended 30 September 2022. The Group has
the early redemption rights as follows:

The Group can transfer the bond up to HK$500,000 to any
person not related to the Company. The Group can request early
redemption of the bond up to HK$500,000 any time before the
Maturity Date and from time to time by serving at least 10 days’
prior written notice.

Profit Big Enterprises Limited (“Profit Big”) (formerly known as
VIP Credit Limited) is a private company limited by shares and
principally engaged in money lending business. According to the
terms of agreement and subject to certain conditions, Profit Big
has the early redemption rights as follows:

Profit Big can early redeem the bond, with the principal and the
accrued interests as at redemption date, before maturity date
with a 5 business days’ notice. There was no interest received
from Profit Big for the year ended 30 September 2022.

The bond was being sold during the year.

17. BBERFFRZMBEERE (8

Kzt (%)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BNEEERATN A HAHERSFMKIZ
ERAA FERERARBERESHFHR
R BROEMEFP R AERMAEF &K RS
RHEEERETFE - ERNBEBHIMERLT
(BRI R5E:1327) - HAW EBARIRATE R 2
X -RBE-_T-_—_FALA=-+BLFE KR
#2.1,530,000% T

REES (BRHRE - 802) REMBAREEHR
EEHEARFHREAR RABRTESEUARET
BRAEMBAINERES REE-_Z=_=_F1A
=+ HIEFE B F S KT E2,200,000%
TC o AL B G 0 TR A [l 4

REBEA M EARQN RN EEE Y ] AT EEE
% 5% % /500,000 7T o 7N = B A 54 5 A A BT 1A
RREDEUTDR B2 EAE@MBME KRR
A1l & 5] & % £ % /43500,0007% 7T ©

BFEERERAR ([&F]) (MBRAEAMBE
BRAB)R—HEAARNDBERAR ETERERE
X% -REBIERERE THEERRT  BFE
40T B2 B A O A

BEFA N HI R AT HEEE X BB AR EREE
7z (CERRNEE AR Z RS REFE) - REE
R _FAA=TRLEFE L& RBIEFER
B e

ZEFRAFEES -
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18.

19.

20.

104 =#HRIRBRAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OVERDRAFTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
cash flows as at 30 September 2022 were HK$16,692,655
(2021: HK$11,912,344), carrying interest at prevailing market
rates.

Overdrafts carry interest at market rate at 16%.

18.

BERASTEEWUREX
RIZB-—FhLA=TRAZEARLRERAN

RekReEEYR16,692,6558 T (T —
F:11,912,34487T) - RBITMHMET B -

BXEMIHME16% 8

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 19. HttESREREFER
2022 2021
—_E_— —E - —
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Margin payables TR RIA 15,876,562 23,900,997
Accruals EETE R 4,157,966 4,200,969
20,034,528 28,101,966

Margin payables bear interest rates ranged from 8% to
15.25% (2021: 8% to 8.25%) per annum for the year. The
margin payables are secured by financial assets at FVTPL,
repayable on demand and are guaranteed by the Company on
behalf of a subsidiary.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued 100% of the principal amount of the
Convertible bonds at HK$21,000,000 on 26 September 2022
(after trading hours). The convertible bonds are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The bonds entitle the holders to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the bonds and their settlement
date on the second anniversary of the date of issue of the
Convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.25 per
conversion share.

The Convertible Bonds are freely transferable by the
convertible bonds holder(s) in whole amounts or multiples of
units of principal amount of the Minimum Denomination to any
person, provided that no transfer of the Convertible Bonds to
any connected person.

The Company shall be entitled to redeem the Convertible
bonds at 102% of the face value of the Convertible bonds
prior to the Maturity Date and at 100% of the face value of the
Convertible bonds on the Maturity Date.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED

20.

RAFE ENFRREZRFNEN TSESR
1525 B (— T = —F :8[E£8.25[E ) st B - JEfT
HFRIEDHEAAETABREEZWKEE
EEB R AR EREEETHARAIRK —HBW
BABIELER-

AR ES

AABRRZZE-_—FAA-+ B (XFEEHE)
F17100% A # PR & % - AN € 55 421,000,000
TR BB EFRBLHE-BFEBETESEA
EFRESFETHELEE R (TRRESETH
WMMET Z B)BERIRRRESRERAR%0.25
BT ARABARRR L BAR -

AgEkEFIRRERERNSR 25N EHH
ABMEESFHBEABREETIMAL  ETE
FERMBEEALTERTRRES -

AATERZENDHE BRI IR A # R E 5 EED
102% & 1A 5 5 B 3% 7] #2 j% (&5 55 [ ([ A9100% f&
Bl A A AR fE 5 o



20. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

In the event that the Company gives notice of redemption
and receives a notice of conversion under the Convertible
bonds on the same date (regardless of the time), the notice of
redemption shall take priority against the notice of conversion.

The holders of the Convertible Bonds may not early redeem
the Convertible Bonds in any event.

Interest of 1.5% will be paid annually up until the maturity or
redemption date.

At initial recognition, the convertible bonds contain three
components, equity component, debt component and
derivative component. The equity component of the
convertible bonds was separated from the liability and
derivative component. The equity element is presented in
equity heading “convertible bonds equity reserve”. The debt
component and derivative (the early redemption options)
component initially measured at fair value. The effective
interest rate of the debt component is 17.1%. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

The movement of the debt and derivative components of the
convertible bonds for the year is set out as below:
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20. TR E S (#)

A2 R RE B (T ) 2 E & Rk
FHRRESTE T 2 HAGE A - Bl PATE @38 A 5
P4 8 R e ©

ABMBEESFEARTMNBER TN SRESELRA

BEBXMBEZME HE
ko

FIHAEC A S

=

ERE AREESBEERT
PTET RO =@

HEERTETAS
Wfﬁllﬁf—fﬁﬂx%%* miE] B
ATARFEEEERE) MO NHEK
BEBEH D ZEBREMERBITARE 7
REFE AAREEHNIERE

%
ttD%D”tI/:n

|
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=
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&
B>
s
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EE
B

kv

HE 2D 2 S B

H
225 ar

D g Hr
5
§

.

AEEBBREFNEERTETIAS S 28
AT

As at 1 October 2020
Conversion of convertible bonds

R-ZZE-_ZF+AH—H
ER S5

Derivative Debt
component component
PTEIARNS BHEBD
HK$ HK$

BT BT
4,398,568 12,782,343
(4,398,568) (12,782,343)

As at 30 September 2021 and

RZZEZ—FhA=+HEK

1 October 2021 —_E_—%+H—-H — —
Issuance of convertible bonds BT BRRES 3,396,971 15,774,511
Interest charge MEEA - 36,897
Loss arising on changes of fair value AABEEEEERER (180,672) =
As at 30 September 2022 R_=_ S sH i 3,216,299 15,811,408
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21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. B
Number of
ordinary shares
Notes of HK$0.25 each Share Capital
SREE
0258 T2
Wizt ZBEREA R
HK$
AT

Authorised: EE:

At 1 October 2020, 30 September 2021, R-_ZE-_Z¥+A—RA —E-_—FhAA=+H"

1 October 2021 and 30 September 2022 —Z-—f+A-BAR=ZE=-ZFNA=1H 800,000,000 200,000,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:

At 1 October 2020 RZEZZF+H—H 275,488,249 68,872,062

Conversion of convertible bonds BRAIRR E S (a) 54,000,000 13,500,000

Exercise of share options Gid -t 13,750,000 3,437,500

At 30 September 2021 and 1 October 2021 RZB-—FNAA=Z+AR=ZZE=_—F+A—H 343,238,249 85,809,562

Exercise of share options ol die 8,250,000 2,062,500

Placing of new shares B EF AR (b) 68,640,000 17,160,000

At 30 September 2022 RZZE-_—FhA=1+H 420,128,249 105,032,062

Notes: M aF -

(a) 54,000,000 shares of HK$0.25 each were issued and allotted (@) ARRRZZE_ZFANA+NARENATRKRE
upon conversion of the convertible bonds placed by the FIEE 1% B 17 R AL $54,000,000/% 5 R E B
Company on 18 September 2020. Please refer to the Company’s 0258tz RMD - E—HFBFFLHEAARBH
announcements dated 1 September 2020 and 18 September R-ZE_TFNA—BERZZE=ZTEFhLA+NH
2020 for further details. ZREe

(b)  On 4 October 2021, the Company and China Prospect Securities (b) RZEBE-Z—F+AWAB AR HEAPBEREES
Limited entered into the placing agreement to issue and allot a ERARGIEE % AEREERKRD0.25%
maximum of 68,640,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.25 JL B {8 #% 3 17 ] i 3% 5 %68,640,0004% AL & A% 15
per placing share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed (IREEHE]) RZTEZ—F+AZ+HA B
and fully subscribed on 25 October 2021. The gross proceeds EFHEO TSI ELRHERE -RESEMERE
from the Placing amounted to approximately HK$17,160,000 BEEH) A17,160,0008 L BB EEELEAZLD
and related directly attributable expenses were approximately /258,700 Lo — LA BEAELMARTBHA
HK$258,700. Please refer to the Company’s announcements - Ft+AmMBR=ZFT=_—F+A=-+HH
dated 4 October 2021 and 25 October 2021 for further details. /N

22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 22, BRRRESTE

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the
annual general meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the
“Option Scheme”), unless otherwise cancelled or amended
subject to resolution passed at general meeting of the
Company the Option Scheme will remain in force for ten
years from 10 December 2013. As at 30 September 2022,
the remaining life of the Option Scheme was approximately
1 years and 3 months. Detail of the Option Scheme are
disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

106 E#EIRAERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

ARBIZBAEEREFEENR_F—=F1+_4
TERETZERBFAE LEKRRBRMER
R ([RBRRERTE])  BRIERTTRARARBRA
g LRBRBRTHIIER] B AIBARES B
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22. IBIRAESHE ()

Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2022

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) announces that on
16 February 2022 (the “Date of Grant”) and 9 March 2022
(the “Date of Grant for Director — Share Options”), the
Company granted two share options which are (i) a total of
25,200,000 share options (the “Share Options”) and (ii) a total
of 8,400,000 share option (the “Director — Share Options”)
to certain Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Grantees”), in accordance

BE-_E-_—_FhABA=1+HLEEEHZ
B
BHMERERAR([A2RNESE([EE])E
(g )sh R-TE-_—_F_-_A+,~B (&
HEHDE-ZE_ZF=ZANB([EE-BEBR
EEHBH]) ARRBREBEARRAR=-ZZ—=F
+Z A+ AR ERES ([ERETS])
MARRIREMBARZETESERIES (541
[ER AL B WIEBRE: ()46 $£25,200,000
B RE ([BBRAE ] ) M (i) & ££8,400,00017 8 A%
([EE-BRE]) HAFERAZR-

with the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
of the Company adopted on 10 December 2013, subject to
acceptance by the Grantees.

(i) Total of 25,200,000 share options
The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for BEREE TERARBARAGRAR
a total of 25,200,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.275 o275tz LB (TR H])AE K
each in the capital of the Company (the “Share(s)”). 25,200,0000% ~ #E 7 - B BB IR ENFFIEH
Details of the Share Options are set out below: T

BHOERERN-_ZE-_—_F-_A+,xA8 (%
tRE) zAnNBEFER_EATEERNET
52,995, 7578 L —BATEEEREANETEE
ABBAT

(i) & #25,200,00015 % 5% &

The fair value of the share options granted on
16 February 2022, the Date of Grant, determined using
the Binomial Pricing Model, was HK$2,995,757. The key
inputs into the Binomial Pricing Model are as follows:

Date of Grant: 16 February 2022
R EE: —E__F_-_A+<H

Exercise price of Share Options HK$0.275 per Share (which is higher than: (i) the closing price of HK$0.265
granted: per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$0.264 per
Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.250)
BRERH0.275F T (RR TIEE: () RHNEL AR EIMBELNE B ®
B P75 YT B & A%0.26578 7T : (i) R R B X H B B AT T (8 & 5 B R B
P E e & B R E R PTFIE T 1 YT B AR0.2647 T 0 K (iii) Ak {3 EE - B
0.250% 7T)

R BRERNITEE

25,200,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the
Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)

25,200,00017 & Az 7 (&5 — {0 BB AR #E 15 A 7 B8 AR i 55 B A R B — IR ik (0 By e
)

Number of Share Options granted:

R ERERE :

Close price of the Shares on the
Date of Grant:
R B E A AR (o i (B -

HK$0.265 per Share
B X 170.265/8 7T
Validity period of the Share Options From 16 February 2022 to 15 February 2025, both days inclusive

granted:

I BB AR A9 78 R AT s T S S T E (2 S EERR)
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22. BERESE ()
Share options granted during the year ended BE-Z-_—HfAA=1THLEEEREZ
30 September 2022 (Continued) B (E)
(i) Total of 25,200,000 share options (Continued) (i) &#£25,200,00017 /5 IR #& (&)
Exercise period of the Share Options From 16 February 2022 to 15 February 2025, both days inclusive
granted:
R RS ITE AR BT -~ _A+A"BE-_E-_AF¥_A+HA (BEEEMRX)
Consideration for the grant: HK$1.00 to be paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options
REHRE: 1 E S IR A P 0 BB AR I X2 11,0078 T
Expected volatility: 90.884%
T B R i 90.884%
Expected dividend yield: 0%
TEHIMR B X 0%
Risk-free rate: 1.215%
42 [, i ) = 1.215%
Vesting condition: None
55 B 1R fiks
(ii) Total of 8,400,000 share options (ii) & #8,400,00017 58 X &
The Director — Share Options entitle the Grantees to EE-BREBETERARBERARRAK
subscribe for a total of 8,400,000 new ordinary shares FRER0251B T2 T @Ak ([IkMm]) & &
of HK$0.251 each in the capital of the Company (the 8,400,000/ ~ ¥ F| - B A= = — EIRAEM =
“Share(s)”). Details of the Director — Share Options are EEHHMT

set out below:

The fair value of the share options granted on 9 March BHENERENR-_ZE-_—_F=ANB (EE—
2022, the Date of Grant for Director — Share Options, BREREBEH) Z2ARBEFR_EXEE
determined using the Binomial Pricing Model, was BAETA1,101,6148 T —HATERR
HK$1,101,614. The key inputs into the Binomial Pricing WEERABIBELT

Model are as follows:

Date of Grant for Director 9 March 2022
— Share Options:

EE-BERERLAE: —ZE-=—F=AANH

Exercise price of Director HK$0.251 per Share (which is the highest of: (i) the closing price of
— Share Options granted: HK$0.250 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the

Stock Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of
HK$0.251 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.250)

REEE - BRENITERE: Bk 0.251%8 T (A N Hl&REE : (i) ROMNKR LD B BB AR H 63 B &
B3R P51 sy T (B & 1%0.25078 7T ¢ (ii) AR A B 5 1% B HA Al A (& 25 B 70 B
22 P B & B R E 2 P51 B9 15 U T B A%0.251 7 JT s K (i) A E(E - B
0.250%8 7T )

108 H#BEHRAIRAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2022 512 —Z - —F N A=1THILFE

22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22. BERESE ()

Share options granted during the year ended BE-ZTE-_—_FhA=1tTHLFERHZ

30 September 2022 (Continued) BB RE (@)

(ii) Total of 8,400,000 share options (Continued) (ii) & #£8,400,00017 55 B #& (&)
Number of Director — Share Options 8,400,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the

granted: Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)

REEE-BRENHA : 8,400,0001) AL (& — M B AREASIE TR AR B ARE — IR0 &0 kER])
Close price of the Shares on the HK$0.25 per Share

Date of Grant for Director
— Share Options:

REE-BRER DA BN B 170.25% 7T
B A W T (B
Validity period of the Director From 9 March 2022 to 8 March 2025, both days inclusive
— Share Options granted:
REEF-BRENE R BE-Z-_F=ANBRE-Z_AF=AN\B(BRFEEMX)
Exercise period of the Director From 9 March 2022 to 8 March 2025, both days inclusive
— Share Options granted:
RHEE-BRENTTER: BT _F=ANAE-Z_AF=ANB(BEEEMX)
Consideration for the grant: HK$1.00 to be paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options
RERE: 1 E B IR A P 4R B AR R I 2 11,0008 T
Expected volatility: 90.459%
& B R 08 - 90.459%
Expected dividend yield: 0%
AR B X 0%
Risk-free rate: 1.300%
[ ez 1) & - 1.300%
Vesting condition: None
55 B IR i
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical EHEEIERALE—EFEAREZRH
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous EBRZBERBEMEE EXMEKBBEHF
1 year. The expected life used in the model has been HERPAEE THEREIRITRAZERE ZF
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the BREBEEREMHARE

effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2021

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) announces that on
16 February 2021 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted
a total of 27,440,000 share options (the “Share Options”)
to certain Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Grantees”), in accordance
with the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
of the Company adopted on 10 December 2013, subject to
acceptance by the Grantees. The Share Options entitle the
Grantees to subscribe for a total of 27,440,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.25 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”). Details of the Share Options are set out below:

The fair value of the share options granted on 16 February
2021, the Date of Grant, determined using the Binomial
Pricing Model, was HK$2,802,996. The key inputs into the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MY R

22. BRESE (®)

BE-Z--FhhA=ZTHLEFERHZBERE

BHREEERAR([ARRIIESR([EXE))
e([gxg)ehm R-_E-—F-F+XxH
(BREBH8])  ARRARBEARRANRZZE—=F
+TZ A+ AERAMERES ([ERES)
MARRAKREMNBRAGIZETESZRES (578
[ER AL EE A $1£27,440,00017 BE B4 ([ A%
) WARERAEZEN -BRERTERAR
REARQARATFRE(E.25B T LB
(TR&1D ))& $£27,440,0000% = 1 7 - B& PR AE 715
AT

EEMBERERA-_Z-_—F_A+/,8 (&
HEBMIZARAEER_EATEERET A
2,802,996 Lo —IHAEEBE N E E 8@ AZIK

Binomial Pricing Model are as follows:

Date of Grant :
B E A

Exercise price of Share Options granted:

BREBRENTTEE:

Number of Share Options granted:

BhBREOSE

Close price of the Shares
on the Date of Grant:

AR H B RO KT (E

Validity period of the Share Options
granted:

BB A

110 B#AIBRAERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

LN

16 February 2021
T FA+XH

HK$0.25 per Share (which is the highest of: (i) the closing price of HK$0.23
per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$0.236 per
Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.25)

BRIRM0.25BT (A TI&REE: ()\RONBXEAFRBIAELNETH R
BRAFINKTEFR0.23B T (i) RHMNEERL BT LEE X BB
AT H Y& B 3R (E R FT 5 EY P29 40T (B | A%0.23678 7T+ M (iii) A {7 E (2 - B10.25

AT)

27,440,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the
Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)

27,440,00017 fE IR 7 (B — O B ARSI T B AR A AR — IR i By i
)

HK$0.23 per Share

TR 0.2378 7T

From 16 February 2021 to 15 February 2024, both days inclusive

g =% &l \BE-—"ZT-MESA+HE (BFEEERX)
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22 R REETE (@)
Share options granted during the year ended BE-ZE-_—-SNRA=1THLEERHEZ
30 September 2021 (Continued) B E)
Exercise period of the Share Options From 16 February 2021 to 15 February 2024, both days inclusive
granted:
RS R TT 08 BE-Z- -4 _A+~HBE-_Z-_MF_A+HB (BEEREMX)
Consideration for the grant: HK$1.00 to paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options
RERE: 1B & R AR ERE R 11.0078 7T
Expected volatility: 87.667%
& B R IR - 87.667%
Expected dividend yield: 0%
TEHR S 0%
Risk-free rate: 0.189%
E R E 0.189%
Vesting condition: None
5 A AR A "
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical TEHRBDHEA L —EFEART ZRNERZ
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 1 BEREMEBE KAMKRABBFHEHTA
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, EHE TERHRITRERZEERERELRE ‘A
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of et AR e .

non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral

considerations.




22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2020

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) announces that on
13 February 2020 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted
a total of 220,000,000 share options (the “Share Options”)
to certain Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Grantees”), in accordance
with the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
of the Company adopted on 10 December 2013, subject to
acceptance by the Grantees. The Share Options entitle the
Grantees to subscribe for a total of 220,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.025 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”). Details of the Share Options are set out below:

The fair value of the share options granted on 13 February
2020, the Date of Grant, determined using the Binomial
Pricing Model, was HK$2,106,500. The key inputs into the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MY R

22. BRERE (@)

BE-ZE-_ZEFNA=THLEEREZ
i iz A2
BHMARARAR (AR EE([EF])g
(IZFg)Elm R-E-TFE_F+=0 ([#
LA ARRRBRAARTNRZZT—=F+=
A+tARMERESS ([ERESE]) A
REIMEWNBARIZETESRREE (5KifE &
A ®RE A $£220,000,00017 88 J% 4 ([ 8RR
) HBRERAZER-BRERTERAT
REARABRAREREE0.025F T2 HMER
B (B 15 1) & £220,000,0000% = # F| - B % 4
FEHNOT

EHERER-_ZSE-_ZTTE_-_A+=8 (%
HEE)Z2AREFER_EATEERNETE A
2,106,500/ 70 — A TERANE ZEm A ZBIE

Binomial Pricing Model are as follows:

Date of Grant:
FHBH:

Exercise price of Share Options granted:

R BRENITEE

Number of Share Options granted:

RHBRENEE

112 E#AIRERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

LN

13 February 2020
—E-TF_A+=H

HK$0.025 per Share (which is the highest of: (i) the closing price of
HK$0.025 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of
HK$0.025 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.025)
BE190.0258 T (B T Hl&EE : () ROV L BEBRBZMELNE AR
BRFI BT EFR0.0258 7T : (i) RH N EZEKR L B BR824 2% B R
XA B RS R RERAIIEF YT ESR0.025%8 7T ¢ & (iii) B E{E - A
0.025% 7T)

220,000,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the
Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)

220,000,00017 B i #E (B — BRI TR ERE ARE — BRI RN
)
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22. BRAESTE (|

Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2020 (Continued)

Close price of the Shares on
the Date of Grant:
R B EE R G5 W (E

Validity period of the Share
Options granted:
REBERENEBBR:

Exercise period of the Share Options
granted:

BRHBRENTES:

Consideration for the grant:

B AR

Expected volatility:
& B i -

Expected dividend yield:
TEHARR B = K
ﬁisk-free rate:

B L A K

Vesting condition:

57 B {5k 1T -

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 1
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’'s best estimate, for the effects of

non-transferability, exercis
considerations.

BE-_ZTZ-_EFNA=1THELEFEEEH>
EARE (&)

HK$0.025 per Share*

TR 170.025% T *

From 13 February 2020 to 12 February 2022, both days inclusive
A-_E-_ZF_A+ZHE-ZT-_F-_A+-B(BEHEEMX)
From 13 February 2020 to 12 February 2022, both days inclusive
BE-Z-ZF_A+=ZHE-_ZT-—"F-_At+-_B(BEEREMX)

HK$1.00 to be paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options
& R AR E AR E R 11,0008 7T

77.125%
77.125%

0%
0%

1.457% ﬁd
1.457%

None
3

BEREDRA L —AEEARAZRAERZ
BERENET SEXFRARPEHER T
R TERIRTAEEZFEREEERE
{5t s - .

estrictions and behavioral




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

22. BRERE (@)

Details of the share options granted and summary of BRIFERESEIENEBE_TE__FHLALFER
movements of the outstanding share options for the year HrEREFBEREORTEERECEZHHESH
ended September 2022 under the Share Option Scheme are FaAT
as follow:
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options held
options held options options as at
Exercise as at granted during  exercised during 30 September
Category Date of Grant Price Option Period 1 October 2021 the Year the Year 2022
R-B=-f RZBZZf
+A-R FEERRE FEERTR AA=+A
5l REBH ke BIRESR FrisBRERE ZBREYE ZEBREHE  FRBREYE
Director
&3
Mr. Kong Fanpeng 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from date of grant 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) -
AABEEE —E-TE-A+=H 0.25%7* BRI AHERE
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 3,430,000 - - 3,430,000
ZZ--5ZA+RH 02557 BREAME=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from date of grant - 4,200,000 - 4,200,000
—T-Z45ZRhA 0.251A7 ERLAHE=F
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from date of grant 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) -
REZ7%4 ZTZEF-A+=H 025" EREBBEME
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 3,430,000 - - 3,430,000
ZZZ-5ZA+RH 0.25% 7T EREBME=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from date of grant - 4,200,000 - 4,200,000
—Z-Z5ZRAhA 0.251A7 ERLAHE=F
Employee 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from date of grant 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) -
ks “Z-T5-A+=R 025BT” BRI AHEmE
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 20,580,000 - - 20,580,000
ZR-FZAtKHE 0.25%7T BREBHE=F
16 February 2022 HK$0.275 Three years from date of grant - 25,200,000 - 25,200,000
ZEZZEZATARR 0205%T EREABE=F
Total
@t 35,690,000 33,600,000 (8,250,000) 61,040,000
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23.

24,

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the
net asset value of the Group as at 30 September 2022 of
HK$468,910,483 (2021: HK$526,214,629) and on the number
of 420,128,249 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each in issue as
at 30 September 2022 (2021: 343,238,249 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each).

On 14 October 2022, the Company published an announcement
titled “Net Asset Value” (the “NAV Announcement”), in which the
net asset value per share of the Company as at 30 September
2022 was stated as HK$1.2680. The decrease of net asset
value per share of the Company as at 30 September 2022 from
HK$1.2680 based on the NAV Announcement to HK$1.12 based
on these consolidated financial statements is principally due
to the valuation works on the expected credit loss on financial
assets at amortised cost, net of reversal of HK$19,312,686,
the expected credit loss on deposits and other receivables,
net of reversal of HK$18,181,068, and loss modification
on investments in financial assets at amortised costs of
HK$5,278,056, which were prepared by independent valuer, yet
to be completed on the date of the NAV Announcement.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Related parties transactions

23.

24,

BREEFE
BREEFEDBREAEER-_ZT=__F1A
—+B2&E H468,910483 8B T (=T — —
F:526,214,6298 L) MR =T ZF A=+
H2420,128,249/% & i {50.25/8 7T 2 B %17
TR (T — — 14 343,238,249 B E &
0258 Tz EBR)GHHE -

RZEZZF+A+H0AE ARAFHBHEERIE
EFEINAGE ([EEFERE]) Bt A=
TZ_FNA=Z+TH ARRERBRHZEEF
E% 5126808 T- R -_E-_—_FEHA=+H"
KRR BRBRHOz2EEFELREEFEREMY
#)1.26807% 7T L & AR A BB R K FATHIM1.12
B FEARRERBHEXNAVNEZMEEEZ
TEEIEEEE (R E) 19,312,686 7T« 1%
S REMERRBEZEREERE (NKRERD)
18,181,068/ 7T RS IR B SH P NP BR 2 BI 15 &
ERE 2 E5185,278,0567% JT M M 98 37 {18 67 I
BHHEIEREEFEAS A MATEN -

FAEATRBEXS

(a) BEALRS

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of the REFEVBRREMEGEFEREZIN
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into RERNREBHBESEATETZIZHIAT
the following transactions with connected parties during
the year:
2022 2021
—E-C—f = s
Note HK$ HK$
Braz BT BT
China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited FEYXAZER (FE) AR QA
(“CESB) (T ERA])
— Investment management fee paid —EfREERE (i) - 100,000
Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong) BRFH (BE)ERAA
Limited (“ESL”) (MaXxEH])
— Investment management fee paid —ENREEEE (i) 600,000 488,710
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

24. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Related parties transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i) CES was an investment manager of the Company and
considered as a connected person under 14A.08 of
Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to an investment
management agreement (“CES Agreement”) dated
29 December 2017 entered into between the Company and
CES, CES agreed to provide the Company with investment
management services (excluding general administrative
services) commencing on 1 January 2018. Pursuant to the
terms of CES Agreement, the monthly investment advisory
fee is HK$50,000. The CES Agreement was terminated

with effect from 1 December 2020.

(i) ESL is an investment manager of the Company and
considered as a connected person under 14A.08 of
Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to an investment
management agreement (“ESL Agreement”) dated
30 November 2020 entered into between the Company and
ESL, ESL agreed to provide the Company with investment
management services for an initial term of three years
commencing on 8 December 2020. Pursuant to the terms
of ESL Agreement, the monthly investment advisory fee is

HK$50,000.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors, who are also members of
key management, during the year ended 30 September

2022 and 2021 was as follows:

24, HEATRBEXRS (#)

(a)

(b)

BEALRS (&)
B

(i) HEAXKREARAZBLEEEA FRELE
TARBE21ZEFE14A.08K R A —BBEA
T REBEAQNREPENXARITZAHE =T
—tFF+ZAZThBZEREAEERZE ([F
X ApE]) FEEAAKRAEE=-Z—N\F
—A—AREAQFRBEETERE (T
BIE—RITBURES) - IRIBEP B K&K
- ZAKRERERME A50,000 7T B
ABhZEE—E_TF+ A —BRBKL-

iy EABEHEAARAZELEETEA WREL
MR FE21IZEFE14A.086 R B — BB E
AT - BEAQAREEBAZHITILBHA -
ToEFE+-A=-+RZEEER G ([E
KEHM#E]) BABRSFREE-_T-_ZF
T ANBRAAARREREEERS
MR B =F - RIFERFHF B E G
& A% EER & /50,0007 7T

FEEEAEBZHS
REE-ZT-FR=ZZT=—FNLA=+
AIEFE REESRETZEEEEKREZA
BZME&MT:

2022 2021
—E-= — T

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits HHERRE A 1,380,000 1,380,000
Post-employment benefits B B 12 48 A 1,200 -
Share-based payment LARE1D BERE 2453 1,101,614 784,098
2,482,814 2,164,098

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with
the terms of the arrangements governing the transactions
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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25.

26.

PLEDGED OF ASSETS
As at the year end, the Group had pledged the following
assets to secure the margin payables:

Financial assets at FVTPL

BARESABGREIEZHBEE

25. EEEHA

RER AKBEDEMTIEEFEREMNFRER
B R

2022 2021
—E—- —E-—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
97,717,941 107,879,456

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of HK$82,349 (2021: HK$80,568) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect

of the current financial year.

26. RIABEF G E

AEERBERFEAESFAEGISAERSH
BB CEERL-BERHRRESE -
HERADRBEEBZEAFE AN LT IR
ERESAEZRNNENEFERE AR -8
BetEzEERm—BABYEREESRHA EAR
KEZEEDHRE - AREZEEHIN AR
BeidHRRE2HRREEME -

REEHERRNB 2 EKA82349B T (= F
——%:80,568E L) EAKER AN KEFER
AR BIRA Z fK -
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27. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as
at 30 September 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

27. TEMB A

N-_E=-

FRZEZ—FNALA=+H XRQF

FREZIEMBARZHBET:

Issued share

Percentage of

Class of registration and
Name shares held  operations
MR BT
=1 FEROERN REXHE
Concolor Holdings Limited Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
Concolor Holdings Limited &L BEELHEE /BB

Ethnocentric Investment Limited Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong

Ethnocentric Investment Limited & % KERIEE/ BB
Like Capital Limited Ordinary Hong Kong
EEARERAT R EE

Huge Energy Holdings Limited  Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong

LERBRBRATF EEmK RBRAHE/BE
Smart Able Holdings Limited Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
BREBRBRAF EEK KBRAHE/BE

Extra One Investments Limited  Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong

Extra One Investments Limited %3 REBRAES/BH
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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and fully paid equity attributable to
share capital the Company Principal activities
BRTRG ADRELRL
REBERE REBEDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# i #%

Us$1 100%

Investment holding

12T 100% - BEER

US$1 100% - Investment holding
1%7T 100% - BEER

HK$3 - 100% Investments of listed

securities, unlisted
securities and unlisted
bonds in Hong Kong

3BT - 100% REREBZ FHES-
FEmBEHFRELT
&%

US$1 100% - Investment holding

1%7T 100% - REEK

US$1 100% - Investment holding

(E 100% - REEK

US$1 100% - Investment holding

1%L 100% - REEKR

ERIHARREEZRATIEXEARERER
BEZASENBAR -EFRRIHHEAMNE

REFABE BTRERRBES LR
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28.

29.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included margin payables as disclosed in Note 19, convertible
bonds as disclosed in Note 20 and equity attributable to
equity holder of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, issue of debentures, new share issue
and share buy-back.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial instruments
(i) Categories of financial instruments

28.

29.

EXEBER
AEEEBRHAANERAEEN HE
BRI - FRS I B (R 7 R 2 A 24 L
EERIEE B A AR E BB R
R E

5 BE 5
SEsiv)

i
=B

AEBZEARBREGYR (BERRHZ19KE
Z FE A FF R SRR R R MY 209 BE 2 FT R AR B %)
RARRBERSAARGEZ (BECETRA
K fttR) o

ARREEEFRANERARB -ELETRIK
EXSEREARARBZBRNERZ HERAR -
REEEZEFH AEESEBRNKRE  #1T
Bm BITHREBORONTFEEEREARR
B

@I AR
(a) E@MIT A

(i) &@RITEZHE

2022 2021
—E-CfF —ET-—fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets MKEE
Financial assets at FVTPL RARBHABREEZHBEE 247,560,902 271,945,792
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKKINRZUHKEE
Investments in financial assets 2 8 58 AR AN 51 BR
at amortised cost CHIEEERE 165,763,667 197,640,436
Other receivables H e W FRIE 80,554,818 71,990,980
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 16,692,655 11,912,344
263,011,140 281,543,760
510,572,042 553,489,552
Financial liabilities g S =Ki
Financial liabilities R R A5 R
at amortised cost ZHkaE
Other payables H th & - 5138 20,034,528 28,101,966
Overdrafts FEX 6,079,340 -
Convertible bonds Al R 1 25 15,811,408 -
41,925,276 28,101,966
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, investments in financial
assets at amortised cost, other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables and
convertible bonds. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, other
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

Other price risk

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL (2021: financial
assets at FVTPL) are measured at fair value at end of
the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
security price risk. Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date.
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29. TR T B (@)
(a) €MIT A (#\)
(i) MHREREREBZEIEE

AEBZFESHIABERAAE
FAABREE WK EE RHHERE
SRR B ERE B WA
RehkBReEEY HMBERNFEBERA
BREF - ZFETRIAZFREERSE
BZHERE 2SR TARBZR
REEmERER(E¥ER- HWER
R kMEXERE) EERBRNREDE
TRAR -

TXEINMAREZERBRZBE B
BEERENEEZSRRIAEREE
AR RBUEE B

ExmERE
AEBZMBEERMFABBBRE Y N
BLstE-Ailt EEERRAEE AL
ZONER BRI NEK -

Rt B 1% /7 Bz

AEBZBEAREFABRSREZHKE
E(ZZE_—F RAAREABEREZ
MBEE)RENBERRZAREFE
At "EBAAEZFERRR EEE
RAFRAREEZREMASEEIARR -

UTBREREISMDBERERSBERARZ
P S (B 1% o fga 1 B 7 o
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments (Continued)

et

Other price risk (Continued)

In respect of financial assets at FVTPL (2021: financial
assets at FVTPL), the following table demonstrates the =z —
impact on (loss)/profit after tax, other comprehensive
income and equity if the price had been 5% (2021: 5%)

higher/lower.

FNA=ZTRLEFE

29. @@ T A (&)
(a) =M T A ()

Bt B 1% /7 B% ()

HRERANEFABZRBE MEEENS (=
FRAREFAERRECVBKE
E) TRERMER LA TE% (ZF
——F:5%) HBRBEK (BE) el H

hrEmRakRRNzEE-

Carrying Decrease/
amount of increase Increase/
equity/debt in loss decrease in
investments after tax equity
BA& & &5 180/ 2 R 2
REZREE /12 2m, mL
HK$ HK$ HK$
Vi Vi Vi o
2022 —E-=
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFAEREEREZ
TS EE
— unlisted securities —ELETES 2,147,000 89,637 89,637
— listed securities ) 242,197,603 10,111,750 10,111,750
Carrying Decrease/
amount of increase Increase/
equity/debt in profit decrease in
investments after tax equity
%R 5 12
A& i AR AR A
®EZREE e v B,
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2021 —EC-—F
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAREFABRREZ
s EE
— unlisted securities —FLETHS 8,069,180 336,888 336,888
— listed securities — &S 263,876,612 11,016,849 11,016,849
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax (and
accumulated losses) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the changes in the market price or other relevant risk
variables had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to price risk at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk for
changes in market interest rates through its investments
in debt securities. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances, margin receivables and payables. The Group
aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the interest rates and ensure
they are within reasonable range.
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29. @@ T A (&)
(a) =M T A ()

Bt B 1% /7 B% ()

HREINER BRRMSERHE M IERH
RERZEENRERARELZLE YDEAN
EMFAEAKEMBFAALNREBARER
SEEEERARNESBR TR AARKER
Btk (BR) Ja8f (RRFBR) REA#
S EMAEKREBY K EHRANSES -

T & m &
MNEERESBRIANALERRSRE
B T 455 7] R 5 8h 1 O B A9 LR o

AEEREBEHFSHREMERRETESF
REFHMELENDAAEF KRR - A% EH IR
EEE AR FEF R BMIRITAS  JEIRFT
EREBEIREMNFREFENHESRENER
R AEEEEBEERIBIRIZZEF R
B NEBIREF RKF R EBFETAF
EEPMELENEEVE UEBHEFER
B o B I B IS R ET B B R IR A R R
NFEBEEGER-



29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax (and accumulated
losses) that would arise if to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.
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29. @@ T A (&)
(a) =M T A ()

FIE B ()

THRITAEMEORE% (BR) /% (&
SHER) BN AEERREHRATEA
BB 1 7745 I A 3% B U443 4 B 7 A
BESH (RRFEEEARERTE)

Sensitivity analysis R E ST
2022 2021
—EC-CE —E--F
Increase/(decrease) Loss after tax Increase/(decrease) Profit after tax
in market  and accumulated in market and accumulated
interest rate losses interest rate losses
[RCLilES BRE&ER i35 | & BHEEMN
R/ (FH) REER EF/(FE) REGEE
HK$ HK$
B BT
Margin receivables JEY R 78 0.5% 54,784 0.5% 2,442
-0.5% (54,784) -0.5% (2,442)
Margin payables ENHFRFE 0.5% 66,285 0.5% 99,787
-0.5% (66,285) -0.5% (99,787)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ (loss)/profit after tax and
equity measured by respective financial instruments
on interest rate at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
interest rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2021.

ERFAROMNERRRAEE S EREK
BBz (B1R) I R AR AT 2 Y B i
B (UBSHRNMEREZANERTA
AFEMERSIIZ ) S R aEE -

BRESTBRRANEXOESHE EANEH
AEASEAFAYRREARELAKE
HEANEERNEM T A - DITEER — =
<= (5]
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

29. @@ T A (&)
(a) =M T A ()

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) || KB (A
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) HRZ T ()

As 30 September 2022 and 2021, some interest-bearing
other receivables are bore at fixed interest rate.
Management considers the exposure to the changes in
market interest rate should not be materially enough to
cause adverse financial effect on the Group’s position.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 30 September 2022 and 2021 in relation
to each class of financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has a
systematic internal credit management policy, which
includes both credit and risk management and collection
management.

Before placing an investment or an advance to a
counterparty, the Group conducts an credit risk
assessment on each of the counterparty, including
assessing the potential credit quality, defining credit
limits and calculating the interest rate by considering
the underlying financial risks. The Group subsequently
performs on-going review on the recoverable amount
of each individual financial assets at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate derecognition
process are made for any irrecoverable amounts and
impairment loss under ECL model is recognised for
future potential loss.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group uses the following benchmarks to perform
internal credit risk grading and impairment assessment

under ECL model:

Level of credit risk

FERRKF

Low risk

KR B

Watch list

Doubtful

A] &t

Loss

&8

Write-off

Benchmarks

2%

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does
not have any past-due amounts

RHHFNEHRRERL LB EMAAYEA

The counterparty has amounts past-due but is
continuously settling after due date and with
continuous business transactions with the Group
ZEcHOBY MXZUFRIPERFEEER L
HEAEESEETERRS

There have been significant increases in credit

risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or externally resources while the
counterparty is with continuous business transactions
with the Group
FRABER 2 ERSINEER  FERR S VAT
REBEEN BEXFHFERNEEFEETEBR
2

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

FEBRTNEEEREEERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no

realistic prospect of recovery
GRS RN UNEPNC E b Rk ISR S R
B iR1E B 12 7] 4 0 A B A

29. @RI T B (&)
(a) =M T A ()
EEmAE (&)
AEBERATEEETEMEERER
AR T ZABEERRTRSIRER

ECL assessment requirement

BFHEEBRFEER

12-month ECL

12 AR EEERE

12-month ECL

128 AFEHEEEE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

EHRMEERE-YEEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

2HBEREEBR - FERE

Amount is written off
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

29. €R T A (@)
(a) €MIA (@)
EERE (&)

Gross carrying amount

BHARE

External credit  Internal credit 12-month or

Notes rating rating Lifetime ECL 2022 2021
12 Ak 258

H#F NBEEIR  ABEEIR HHEERHR —B-CF —Z--F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Investments in financial asset at RBEKAGEY 17 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 149,207,026 231,885,145
amortised cost HBREERE i ERk 12@AEHREEER

N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL 62,956,290 -
@R A5 - not credit-impaired
2HEHEEER
-UREEREA

Amounts receivables HERE 2z ERFE 15 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 91,058,646 94,050,768
on disposal of investments TiEA BB — credit-impaired
PHESEERE
—EERE

N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 17,200,000 -
TEA ERE 12EABHEEEE

Other receivables H b e R 15 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 42,597 42,538
TEA ERR 12EABHEERE

Cash at banks RITRE 18 AA1-AA3 Low risk 12-month ECL 16,692,655 11,912,344
BRR 12EBABHEEESE

337,157,214 337,890,795

In term of collection management, the Group monitors REAREBETH ASERBELETHNE

the repayment against the pre-determined repayment

terms and considers to take and conducts these actions

to recover the overdue receivables in a default event:

(i) To negotiate with the counterparty, understand their

financial position and plan for debt restructuring, if

necessary;

(i) To issue legal letter to the counterparty as a

warning;

(iii) To appoint external debt collection agency to

recover the debt against the counterparty; and

(iv) To take legal actions against the counterparty to

collect the overdue receivable.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (#)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued) (a) £ET A (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

Although the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover the credit risk, the
directors of the Company consider these internal control
policies could effectively manage the Group’s credit risk.

The Group’s credit risk exposure is primarily attributable
to its financial assets at amortised cost, including
investments in financial assets at amortised cost, other
receivables and cash at bank.

The credit risk on investments in financial assets at
amortised cost is arisen from the investing bonds issued
by certain listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong.
The Group’s investment strategy is to balance the credit
risk and return by investing in medium risk corporate
bonds. These corporate bonds are always lacking
of independent and public recognised credit ratings
available, as such, management of the Company carried
out additional credit and risk management policy against
these bonds investment:

(a) To review and monitor the portfolio, financial
performance and financial positions of these listed
and unlisted companies on regular basis; and

(b) To prepare impairment review under ECL model
by using historical repayment record and past due
information to consider whether the credit risk
changed since initial recognition.

EERE (&)
BEASELEFAEMETRIEME
RERNBEEEERR NAREERS
ZEANMEHEETARERAKENG
Rk -

AEENEERREZRE ERBHKA
FHEZUBEE BRAEEREGFHEZY
BEERE HMEYRARRITER

RBERAFEZMBEEREZEER
REBETEELTRIFLTRAETH
BREGBF - AEBENKRERBZABKRESD
FRRARES EREERRKE R F
B -ZERREFBETRZBILABNE
A El ARREEEHZEESR
BETHINEERAREERER:

(a) ERBALREBZELMEIELTA
AMEZREES MBRERMBRR:
K

(b) BBEFBERRCE R AHERRZ
BHREEBBRENETRERN  AZ
BEERR B NRERARES EE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
For the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021,
the Group has recognised the expected credit loss on
investments in financial assets at amortised cost as
follows:

29. @@ T A (&)
(a) =M T A ()

EEEE (&)
BHE_Z-_—_FR-_ZF-_—FNLA=1TH
IEFE - REEE ERIZE AR 2B
BEEREZEHEEBEBNT:

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-
12 month-ECL impaired Total

2HRES

128 AR H FEER
FEEB -kEERHE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT BT
As at 1 October 2020 R-ZZE-Z&+HA—H 31,002,585 - 31,002,585
Expected credit losses recognised BHERZEHEEEE 18,641,626 - 18,641,626
Expected credit losses reversed EROEHEEBRE (13,856,436) - (13,856,436)
As at 30 September 2021 and RZBE-Z-5RA=1+HEK 35,787,775 - 35,787,775

1 October 2021 —2--%1+A-H
Transfer to non-credit impaired ERTIEERE (8,788,513) 8,788,513 =
Expected credit losses recognised BERAZAHEZEER 10,571,956 8,740,730 19,312,686
Expected credit losses disposed BHEZEHEEEE (8,700,812) - (8,700,812)
As at 30 September 2022 R-B==FAB=1H 28,870,406 17,529,243 46,399,649
Taking into consideration that there is no default ERZERANBTEREL P I LB
payment noted in the previous repayment history of B WEREREEBEEXNETRED AR
these companies and adequate impairment assessment B ARRESRR 'Ei%ﬁ?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ$
under ECL model performed, directors of the Company FFECUBEERBEZEERR A ZEH -

consider the credit risk on these investments in financial
assets at amortised cost is manageable.
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29. £ T A ()
(a) €MIA (&)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on other receivables is arisen mainly from
amounts receivables on disposal of investments. The
Group’s investment strategy is to identify potential private
equity investment and dispose these equity investment
to a suitable entrepreneur for further development,
the Group will provide financing arrangement to these
entrepreneur to earn a stable interest income. Because
of lacking of independence and public recognised credit
ratings available and the credit risk is considered as
high, the management of the Company carries out
additional credit and risk management policy against
these other receivables:

(@) To maintain close relationship with these
counterparties and keep track on their financial
positions;

(b) To review repayment terms and schedule with
the counterparties in case there is any financial
difficulties; and

(c) To prepare impairment review under ECL model
by using historical repayment record and past due
information to consider whether the credit risk

changed since initial recognition.

EEmAE (&)
HiEUHENEERREIERAHLER
B2 RUGRIE - R E BN RE R SERE
ELSERERE IHZEREREETS
ERDRFAFE - FER AKEKRZ
ErERRHBELZHUARDRBENF S
WA -BRBREZBLIRARNEENA B
FERRERABRAR AAREEREREY
ZEHEMERFEETRINEERAR
EIRR

(a) BZEXZFHEFRHZTMEALER
HB AR

(b) i IR ISR 2 - AR 58 F s
BB ERRER: &

(c) BBEABAEERTHRBBHERZ
BHEEBEBRREETRER A
BEERBRANAERAREEEE

B -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
For the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, the
Group has recognised the expected credit loss on other
receivables and amounts receivables on disposal of
investments are as follows:

29. €@ T A (#)
(a) €MIT A (#\)
EEEE (&)
BHE_Z-_—_FR-_ZF-_—FNLA=1TH
WFE-AEE D #REMERKIEREE
KERWKBEBOBBREEBENAT

Lifetime ECL

- credit-
12 month-ECL impaired Total

2HFEH

128 A FE 8 FEBR
FEER —=8RE et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 1 October 2020 R-ZE-_ZHF+H—H 1,485,209 21,328,906 22,814,115
Expected credit losses recognised B R 2 BHIIEEEE - 3,477,622 3,477,622
Expected credit losses reversed DO 2 BHI{EEEE (1,479,599) (2,124,846) (3,604,445)

As at 30 September 2021 and RZE-_—FhA=+

1 October 2021 —E-_—%+H—H 5,610 22,681,682 22,687,292
Expected credit losses recognised B iRz BHEEEE 3,256,394 14,924,674 18,181,068
As at 30 September 2022 R-ZE-__FhA=1+H 3,262,004 37,606,356 40,868,360

Taking into consideration that there is no default payment
noted in the previous repayment history of these counter
parties and adequate impairment assessment under ECL
model performed, directors of the Company consider the
credit risk on these other receivables are manageable.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counter parties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is only in Hong Kong. The Group has
62%) of
the total other receivables was due from the largest

concentration of credit risk as 62% (2021:

counterparty.
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29. @@ T A (&)
(a) =M T A ()

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of other payables, convertible
bonds and also in respect of its cash flow management.
The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Directors
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash

HEEZEE
RBETRBRERNEESTERBITURN
ReHEMMBEERNMBEAENEE
[\ fex A 8 o 7K &= 1B T B A B Lt A RO
AREESEENTERERSREEE
IRBESRR -AKEEZERASEREER
KEMRBEERERFENEEESIURE
NEMERERNRBEST K-

S

RERRBDESRRE EFHRS LR
SEMETER YRAFERRASTEZKX

Ht
m

equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s T AASELEERTEESRAEREERE
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash RENH R o

flows.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

TRINFAEEHBEEERRS AR ZF
BRAWBHER TRERERAESRE (B
RERAAHDNEFENN SN RAEE
AIREW BRI RE B HMIIR :

On Total

Weighted demand/ One year contractual
average within to Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years two years cash flows amount

miE RER/ CEES 3]
FHR= -FR —FEWF BBWE HERELE RAEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B B

At 30 September 2022 RZB-ZERA=1H

Other payables A EMFE - 20,034,528 - - 20,034,528 20,034,528
Overdrafts BX 16% 6,175,552 - - 6,175,552 6,079,340
Convertible bond RRES 17.1% 2,699,798 24,118,784 - 26,818,592 15,811,408
28,909,878 24,118,784 - 53,028,672 41,925,276

On Total

Weighted demand/ One year contractual
average within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years two years cash flows amount

g REX/ ANAKH
FF= el —FEME BEAME HonEgR BHE
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT BT BT AT AT

At 30 September 2021 RZE--FRA=1H

Other payables AR TR = 28,101,966 - - 28,101,966 28,101,966
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29. €M T A ()
(b) B fifE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

. the fair value of financial assets suspended from
trading are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on comparable
companies method or net asset value method based
on reliable estimates of forecasted performance of
the assets with reference to market similar product;
and

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows and discount rate
estimated with reference to market similar products
and other relevant market information.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group approximate
their fair values due to their immediate or short-term
maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at end of the
reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1: fair values measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

132 EH#EHRAIRAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (@)
(b) Fair value (Continued) (b) AARME(HF)

«  Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs, s B FAE R A (AR
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, HEE—RATE 2B R AHIE) LA
and not using significant unobservable inputs. A EREATABERG ASEGZ
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market RNIAAB - DA B R i A SR AT A LS
data are not available; and TS8R 2B AR &

« Level 3: fair values measured using significant s FBZHFERAERTABRHASERG
unobservable inputs. EAE

2022
—BE-—fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-% gt ] w“m
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEHABEEREE
ZHKEE
— unlisted securities -¥LEMEH - = 2,147,000 2,147,000
- listed securities - LWES 242,197,603 - - 242,197,603
— derivative financial assets ~-NMETAUKEE - - 3,216,299 3,216,299
242,197,603 - 5,363,299 247,560,902
2021 |
e o=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R F-H E=R k]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BEDARBHABRERE
ZHKEE | B
— unlisted securities -kLEmEH - - 8,069,1§_Q 8,069,180
- listed securities — B 263,876,612 L fj 263,876,612

263,876,612

¥
'8
i
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #iZ =2 - —FAA=+HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Fair value (Continued)

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured

at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The

following table gives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Financial assets

HHEE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BAREFARBREY
HBEE

Listed securities other than

suspended stocks

s (EREERERI)

Unlisted securities

FLMES

134 BHARBRATR

2022
—E-CE

HK$
BT

242,197,603

(2021: 263,876,612)

242,197,603
(ZB=—-%:
263,876,612)

2,147,000

(2021: 8,069,180)

2,147,000

8,069,180)

CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Fair value
hierarchy

RAERR

Level 1

E

Level 3

Valuation
technique(s)

fhE R i

Quoted bid price

FHEAE

Discounted cash flow

EREORE

29. ¢ WMIT A (@)
(b) A RME (#)

AEBETHHBEEDANEREARZ

4

REFE-TRRERHEEZEVNBEER/LR

BzEHM(RBMS MAEANMGEERTE

BABE) °

Significant
unobservable
inputs Range
EXTUER
BAHE gE
N/A N/A
TER TER
Free cash flow N/A
EmRERE TER
Weighted average 10.0% to 20.2%
cost of capital (2021: 16% to 20%)
MEFHEARRK R 10.0% £20.2%
(ZB=-%:
16% £20% )
Discount for lack of 20.5%

marketability (2021: 20.6%)

[P sy 20.5%
(Z2=—%:
20.6% )

Discount for lack of 28.6%

control (2021: N/A)

W EHIER R 28.6%
P=T =g
TER)

Relationships of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FTABRAAHER
RMEZBE

N/A

ek

The higher the free
cash flow, the higher
the fair value
BERRSREHA DAE
B

The higher the weighted
average cost of capital,
the lower the fair value

MEFHERKALA
DB

The higher the discount
for lack of marketability
of capital, the lower
the fair value

REEREHEREA
RAEH)

The higher the discount
for lack of control,
the lower the fair value
B B REA
ARAEBN

AN
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. R T A (4)
(b) Fair value (Continued) (b) 2~ RE (&)
Valuation Significant Relationships of
Fair value technique(s) unobservable unobservable
Financial assets 2022 hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) Range inputs to fair value
RERMR EXTUBER TTEERABEA
HBEE ZEIZE DAEER  IERARE BARE g8 RAEZHE
HK$
B
Derivative component in 3,216,299  Level 3 Binomial option Expected volatility 100.144% The higher the expected
relation to the convertible (2021: N/IA) pricing model (2021: N/A) volatility, the higher the
bonds issued by the Group fair value.
BRARERTHNTARES 3216299 E=% “ERABRETERS EHRE 100.144% BEEREES MESS.
BETER A (ZB=-%: (z2=-&:
TER) TER)
Risk-free rate 4.399% The higher the risk-free rate,
(2021: N/A) the lower the fair value.
BERANE 4.399% ERBNELR ALE
(Z2=—F: M-
TER)
Stock price: 0.18 The higher the stock price,
(2021: N/A) the lower the fair value.
REER: 0.18 REERES ARELE
(Z2--%:
TER)
Effective interest rate  17.406% The higher effective interest
(2021: N/A) rate, the lower the fair
value.
ERAE 17.406% ERFZER AAEDE-
(Z2--%:
£ TER) ;ﬁ
As at 30 September 2022, suspended stocks of listed RZEZZFNA=+H " REAE034,237

(ZZ - —%:3928008 L) 2 EFE

securities with carrying value of HK$9,034,237 (2021: B (=

HK$392,800) were fully impaired. ERE E’Jiﬁ%’i#}ﬁ?&%{ﬁdﬁ

There were no other transfers between Level 1 and BE-_Z-_—_ERrR=-E=-—FhA=+H
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value HFE F—REF-_HANBEFEZHL
measurements for the year ended 30 September 2022 BHMOEER TECNE=QAREFEZ

and 2021. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers BARE L - AREZBR HIRE R
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of W& AR EER- '

the reporting period in they occur.

g o
|
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29.
(b) Fair value (Continued)
The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets is as

CIAL STATEMENTS

@I A @®
(b) 2 R1E (&)
E-RUMBEEHENT

follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of the year REH 8,069,180 10,424,888
Disposals HE (4,982,600) (4,398,568)
(Loss) gain on fair value change NAEEE (EBE) Bas (939,580) 2,042,860
At end of the year RE KR 2,147,000 8,069,180
30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 0. MEFTHELANEBBZHE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes, during the year ended 30 September 2022 and
30 September 2021. Liabilities arising from financing activities
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

TRH|LMLRBE-_E-_—_FHLA=TEER_-Z
T—FNA=ZTHLESEE AEEREZHEL
WEEZY (RREReMIERSEY) -BHETH
EXNBEAREMNECRXBEBNAERLS
ReEnery)BARETIMERERENAE-

Convertible

bonds

i8R E %

HK$

BT

At 1 October 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+H—H 13,500,000

Conversion of convertible bonds BRI MR ES (13,500,000)

Proceeds from exercise of share options IT{EBARE 2 TS 3KIB -

At 30 September 2021 and 1 October 2021 R-E-_—FhA=+BER=FE=-_—F+A—H -

Proceeds on issue convertible bonds BT TR E S 2 TS 3UE 21,000,000

At 30 September 2022 AL AT L 21,000,000
31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 1. EXRKBEERS

On 31 October 2020, the Company purchased new bonds
issued by Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited, the acquisition cost
was fully settled by the “Prepayment on subscription of new
bonds” for HK$42,000,000.
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

et

FNA=ZTRLEFE

32. AR HBMRR K

2022 2021
— === —E -4
HK$ HK$
7B T BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A OEENGIPA £ 47 47
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERHFRIE 1R & I ot fE WRIE
other receivables 19,292,631 17,665,208
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG ¢ 466,228,715 495,008,567
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 614,576 2,001,477
486,135,922 514,675,252
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HEMERIEREEA 3,251,685 3,294,685
Amounts due to subsidiaries BT B A B 5 IE 53,993,246 54,071,049
57,244,931 57,365,734
Net current assets REBEEFEE 428,890,991 457,309,518
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBERABAG 428,891,038 457,309,565
Non-current liabilities kREBEME
Convertible bonds Al ] RR (& 5 15,811,408 =
Deferred tax liability BERIBEE 862,206 -
16,673,614 —
Net assets HEFE 412,217,424 457,309,565
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital A% A 105,032,062 85,809,562
Reserves B 307,185,362 371,500,003
Total equity attributable to equity holders 72 &I ER B A fE{GfE s 4258
of the Company 412,217,424 457,309,565

Chan Cheong Yee

BRE &
Director

EF

Kong Fanpeng
FL LB
Director

EF
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33. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

33. KR A B

Convertible Capital
Share bonds equity reduction Share options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES
R EE BiffE REAHRRE BRERE ZitER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT BT BT
At 1 October 2020 R-Z-ZF+HA—H 1,315,163,854 4,920,818 22,826,010 2,106,500  (899,844,137) 445,173,045
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBBERZE
expenses for the year R e - - - - (71,555,220)  (71,555,220)
Exercise of share options IRERE - - - (1,320,000) 1,320,000 =
Recognition of equity-settled RUARRAEE BB
share-based payments BERKNNH - - - 2,802,996 - 2,802,996
Conversion of convertible bonds ~ EH# A& EH - (4,920,818) - - - (4,920,818)
At 30 September 2021 and RZB--%RA=tH
1 October 2021 R=ZE--F+H—-H 1,315,163,854 - 22,826,010 3,589,496  (970,079,357) 371,500,003
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFBEREE
expenses for the year BB - - - - (75913,545)  (75,913,545)
Placing of new shares & RH (258,721) - - - - (258,721)
Exercise of share options IRERE - - - (786,550) 786,550 =
Recognition of equity-settled RUARRAE S B IR
share-based payments BERNAR - - - 4,097,371 = 4,097,371
Conversion of convertible bonds B # AT AR E 5 = 7,760,254 = - . 7,760,254
At 30 September 2022 RZE-ZEAB=1+H 1,314,905,133 7,760,254 22,826,010 6,900,317 (1,045,206,352) 307,185,362
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33. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in share premium account are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is derived after setting off
of the capital reduction with the accumulated losses as
at the date of the capital reorganisation of the Company
which became effective on 8 February 2013.

Distributability of reserves
At 30 September 2022 and 2021, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for the distribution to the owners

of the Company calculated in accordance with the
laws of the Cayman Islands was HK$300,285,045 and
HK$367,910,507 respectively.

(i)

(if)

33. XA ARG ()

B 17 5 B
BOEERZEAXAERBERREMMR
E-REFAEHRERFAE KHEERZE
EADKRTFARBBRR AREARREER
PERmkEREANRADAENEER
AEEBBRTIH2ER-

FR A< Bl R 1o 4

BRAH R RN AR BRAER (7
—E-=FZANBER) BB BRAHR
RRFEBERESH-

(iii) BEEZTDIRY

R —FER_FT-_—FHLA=1+H 1§
BRSHESEMNFAEIHIETAARE
EAZRELED R A300,285,045% T &
367,910,5078 7T °




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

audited financial statements, is set out as follows:

AEEREA

7

TExE EERABEHMEHINNT:

ERMBERRZBERTEAMREEZE

RESULTS ES
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Bz EES Bz BE S
—E-CF % —TCEF “E-NE —ZT-N\F
AA=+AH NA=1H NA=1H hB=+H hB=+H
LtEE I35 HEE EFE IEFE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Turnover EEE (25,149,110) 76,705,162 (52,399,474)  (142,787,678)  (179,754,212)
(Loss) profit before tax GBI (B1B) &2 H (88,125,550) 62,724,232 (105,482,955)  (183,559,559)  (244,421,994)
Income tax expense FiERRE% - - - - -
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ARTRERAE AERL
equity holders of the Company AEE (FE) &N (88,125,550) 62,724,232  (105,482,955)  (183,559,559)  (244,421,994)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAEHE
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EC-CF ke a3 3 “T-NF —T-N\F
hA=TH NA=+H NA=1H NA=+H NA=+H
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT BT
Total assets BELE 511,697,965 554,316,595 489,783,797 576,007,442 751,497,253
Total liabilities BEEE (42,787,482)  (28,101,966) (41,113,078)  (28,881,086) (15,943,215)
Total equity attributable to equity holders AR B #EHH AL
of the Company it 468,910,483 526,214,629 448,670,719 547,126,356 735,554,038

140 B#AIRERAE
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